Public Document Pack

Dear Councillor
The next meeting of the COUNCIL will be held at 6.30 pm on TUESDAY, 8 MARCH
2022 in the Council Chamber, 13 Church Street, Clitheroe, BB7 2DD.
I do hope you can be there.
Yours sincerely

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
AGENDA
1.

PRAYERS

2.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

3.

DECLARATIONS
OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY,
OTHER
REGISTRABLE
AND
NON-REGISTRABLE
INTERESTS

4.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION SESSION

5.

TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS
MEETING

6.

MAYORAL COMMUNICATIONS

7.

PRESENTATION OF RV PLAQUE TO PAST MAYOR
CLLR S BRUNSKILL

8.

LONG SERVICE AWARDS FOR STAFF

FOR DECISION
9.

REVENUE
BUDGET
2022/23
AND
CAPITAL (Pages 5 - 36)
PROGRAMME 2022/23 – 2024/25 AND SETTING THE
COUNCIL TAX FOR EACH CATEGORY OF DWELLING IN
THE COUNCIL’S AREA FOR 2022/23
Report of Director of Resources enclosed.

10.

LEADER'S REPORT

11.

LEADER'S QUESTION TIME

12.

COMMITTEE MINUTES

(Pages 37 - 112)

To receive and consider, where appropriate, the minutes of the committees since
the last meeting (items marked *** are referred to Council for decision).
COMMITTEES
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
COMMUNITY SERVICES
PERSONNEL
***
HEALTH & HOUSING
POLICY & FINANCE
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
EMERGENCY
COUNCIL
PARISH COUNCIL LIAISON
LICENSING
ACCOUNTS & AUDIT
***
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
SP POLICY & FINANCE

13.

DATE
6 JAN
11 JAN
12 JAN
13 JAN
18 JAN
20 JAN
25 JAN
25 JAN
27 JAN
1 FEB
2 FEB
10 FEB
22 FEB

PAGE
35 – 44
45 – 52
53 – 55
57 – 62
63 – 70
71 – 74
75 – 76
77 – 81
82 – 86
87 – 89
91 – 93
95 – 101
103 – 110

MINUTE
517 – 532
533 – 551
552 – 561
562 – 574
575 – 595
596 – 607
608 – 611
612 – 623
624 – 634
635 – 645
646 – 656
657 – 674
675 – 685

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

NOTES
QUESTONS (attention is drawn to Standing Orders 9,10 and 12)
i) A member may ask the Mayor or the Chairman of any committee a question on any matter
where the Council has powers or duties or which affects the Borough. A question must either
begiven to the Chief Executive by noon on the Friday before the meeting or relate to urgent
business, in which case agreement of the Mayor to the question being put shall be required
and, where possible, a copy of the question will be given to the Chief Executive before 10am
on the day of the meeting.
ii) Any member may ask a question or make a comment on any minute before the Council,
provided that he or she does not speak for more than 5 minutes in total on the minutes of a
particular committee. The Chairman may decline to answer a question unless written notice of
the question has been given to the Chief Executive by noon on the Friday before the meeting.
iii) Any member may ask questions of the Leader of the Council on matters relating to the
general work of the Council which do not fall within the remit of any particular committee.
Notice in writing specifying the nature of the question in sufficient detail to enable a reply to
be prepared must be given to the Chief Executive by no later than noon on the Friday before
the meeting.

Electronic agendas sent to members of Council – Councillor Anthony (Tony) Austin
(Chair), Councillor Jan Alcock JP, Councillor Stephen Atkinson, Councillor Richard
Bennett, Councillor David Berryman, Councillor Susan Bibby, Councillor David
Birtwhistle, Councillor Alison Brown, Councillor Ian Brown, Councillor Stella Brunskill JP,
Councillor Robert (Bob) Buller, Councillor Stuart Carefoot, Councillor Judith Clark,
Councillor Louise Edge, Councillor Rosemary (Rosie) Elms, Councillor Steve Farmer,
Councillor Stewart Fletcher, Councillor Mark French, Councillor Jonathan Hill, Councillor
Mark Hindle, Councillor Stuart Hirst, Councillor Brian Holden, Councillor Simon Hore,
Councillor Kevin Horkin MBE, Councillor Angeline Humphreys, Councillor Ged Mirfin,
Councillor Richard Newmark, Councillor Donna O'Rourke, Councillor Simon O'Rourke,
Councillor David Peat, Councillor Sarah Rainford, Councillor Mary Robinson, Councillor
James (Jim) Rogerson, Councillor Jennifer (Jenni) Schumann, Councillor Gary Scott,
Councillor Richard Sherras, Councillor Robert Thompson and Councillor Robin Walsh.
Contact: Democratic Services on 01200 414408 or committee.services@ribblevalley.gov.uk

Agenda Item 9
RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL
REPORT TO COUNCIL

DECISION

meeting date: 8 MARCH 2022
title: REVENUE BUDGET 2022/23 AND CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2022/23 –
2024/25 AND SETTING THE COUNCIL TAX FOR EACH CATEGORY OF
DWELLING IN THE COUNCIL’S AREA FOR 2022/23
submitted by: DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES
principal author: JANE PEARSON
1.

PURPOSE

1.1.

To set the budget for 2022/23 and to set the different amounts of council tax for
different parts of the area where special items apply (Parish precepts).

1.2.

To approve a change to the Local Council Tax Support scheme to remove the 12%
reduction applied to working age claimants to bring them into line with pensioner age
claimants.

2.

THE PRUDENTIAL CODE FOR CAPITAL FINANCE IN LOCAL AUTHORITIES

2.1.

The Prudential Code for Capital Finance and the prudential indicators are set out in
Annex 1.

2.2.

The Code and the indicators are intended to inform the Council, in setting the capital
programme, that the programme is both affordable and sustainable. The indicators
also include the maximum and operational borrowing levels for the Council.

3.

CAPITAL PROGRAMME

3.1.

The future capital programme budget is reviewed and updated each year. In recent
years, the Council has approved a fully funded five-year capital programme each
year. The process of updating the programme has involved reviewing and updating
the schemes that were approved in the previous year’s programme and considering
new bids put forward.

3.2.

Given uncertainty surrounding future government funding it was agreed that a fourth
and fifth year would not be added to our capital programme at this stage and that new
bids would be further considered when these reforms are published.

3.3.

At their meeting on 22 February 2022, Policy and Finance Committee recommended
a revised capital programme for 2021/22 totalling £1,761,370 and a capital
programme for the three years; 2022/23 to 2024/25 totalling £5,563,970 which is
shown in Annex 2.

4.

MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION

4.1.

The Council is required each year to agree a Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)
Policy Statement setting out how the Council will make a charge to revenue in respect
of previous capital expenditure. This Policy Statement is also set out in Annex 1.

1 of 31
1-22c

Page 3

5.

REVENUE BUDGET
2021/22 Revised

5.1.

We originally budgeted to spend £5.517m (before use of balances). The revised
estimate is that net expenditure will be lower at £4.919m. Details are shown in Annex
3. The revised budget in summary for 2021/22 is:

Revised
Estimate
2021/22
£000
Net Committee Budget

8,018

Capital Adjustments
Less Depreciation (included in above)
Add Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)
Total Expenditure

-884
107
7,241

Other Items
External Interest Payable

6

Interest Earned

-2

New Homes Bonus

-1,516

Income from Business Rates

-3,258

Business Rate Deficit

2,726

Rural Services Delivery Grant

-113

Lower Tier Services Grant

-58

Covid Emergency Funding

-242

Earmarked Reserves
Transfer From/To Various Funds
Net Expenditure

4,919

Adjustment to Balances to Get to Agreed Budget
Agreed budget for year

5.2.

135

198
5,117

We estimate this will leave general fund balances at 31 March 2022 of £2.732m.
Local Government Grant Settlement

5.3.

2 of 31
1-22c

The Provisional Grant Settlement was announced on 16 December 2021. A full report
detailing the provisional settlement was submitted to the Policy and Finance
Committee meeting in January. The Final Settlement was published on 7 February
2022 and was reported to the Special Policy and Finance Committee meeting on 22
February 2022.

Page 4

Settlement Funding Assessment
of which:
Revenue Support Grant
Baseline Funding Level
New Homes Bonus
Rural Services Delivery Grant
Lower Tier Services Grant
2022/23 Services Grant
Total Government Funding

2022/23
£m
1.354609
215
1.354393
1.205836
0.113250
0.061960
0.093368
2.829022

Forecast Budget 2022/23
5.4.

Policy and Finance Committee have recommended a net budget of £5,415,359.
Details are shown in Annex 3. This results in the following budget requirement:

£
Borough Requirement
Parish Council Requirements
Total Borough and Parish Requirements
6.

5,415,359
517,347
5,932,706

ROBUSTNESS OF THE ESTIMATES AND BALANCES AND RESERVES
Robustness of the Estimates

6.1.

It is a specific requirement of section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 for the
chief financial officer to report on the robustness of the budget and the adequacy of
the Council’s balances and reserves.

6.2.

I can confirm that throughout the budget process all practical steps have been taken
to identify and make budgetary provision for all likely commitments facing the Council
in 2022/23. The preparation of the base committee estimates remains a vital part of
ensuring the robustness and financial integrity of the budget and ensures that all
service committees are aware of the resource allocation and budgetary pressures
facing their service areas. My report to the special Policy and Finance Committee set
out the various processes followed to ensure the Council’s estimates are robust.
Adequacy of Reserves

6.3.

6.4.

3 of 31
1-22c

A reasonable level of balances is needed to provide funds to:


Finance levels of inflation in excess of those provided in the budget



Provide for unforeseen expenditure



Finance expenditure in advance of income



Allow flexibility as the year progresses

The availability of balances has increased in importance since the Local Government
Finance Act 1982 revoked local authorities' power to issue supplementary precepts.

Page 5

General Fund Balances
6.5.

At this stage general fund balances are estimated as follows:
£000
Opening Balance 1 April 2021

2,534

Estimated Amount to be added to Balances in 2021/22
Estimated Balances in Hand 31 March 2022
Estimated Amount to be taken from Balances in 2022/23
Estimated Balances in Hand 31 March 2023

198
2,732
-412
2,320

6.6.

The level of balances to retain is a matter of professional judgement but should be
set in the context of the authority’s medium term financial strategy and the risks facing
the authority.

6.7.

When the medium term financial strategy was recently reviewed the minimum level
of balances to retain was confirmed to be £700,000 bearing in mind our record of
strong budgetary control.

6.8.

In 2022/23 we estimate that £412,000 will be taken from balances to support the
budget.
Earmarked Reserves

6.9.

The Council holds a number of reserves earmarked for specific purposes. The
movements in these reserves forecast for 2021/22 and 2022/23 were reported to the
special Policy and Finance Committee meeting. In addition the projected use of
reserves over the budget forecast to 2026/27 was explained.

6.10. The earmarked reserves are also judged to be adequate to meet the commitments
and forecast expenditure facing the Council.
7.

COLLECTION FUND
Collection Fund surplus/deficit

7.1.

The position on the collection fund has been estimated and details are shown in
Annex 4.

7.2.

I forecast that there will be a surplus on the collection fund for Council Tax at 31 March
2022 of £1,260,939 and a deficit of £4,373,579 for Business Rates. The deficit in
respect of Business rates is mostly as a result of the reduction in income to the
Collection Fund due to the awarding in year of £3.988m of retail discount for which
we have received section 31 grant.

7.3.

The equivalent shares of the Council Tax Surplus will be paid to the appropriate
authorities in 2022/23 whilst the equivalent shares of the Business Rates Deficit will
be recovered from the appropriate authorities.
Local Council Tax Support

7.4.

At your Full Council meeting in March 2021, as part of the budget deliberations, it was
suggested that the Council explore the possibility of removing the 12% reduction in
support for working age claimants thereby increasing support to these claimants.

7.5.

A consultation exercise ran from 25 October 2021 to 5 December 2021.

4 of 31
1-22c

Page 6

7.6.

All major preceptors raised concerns about the proposed change and the impact it
would have on the income they received. However, 91% of the 58 responses received
via the online survey agreed that the 12% reduction should be removed.

7.7.

The outcome was considered by Policy and Finance Committee in January 2022 and
they recommend that the scheme should be amended to remove the 12% reduction
in support for working age claimants.

5 of 31
1-22c

Page 7

8.

RECOMMENDED THAT COUNCIL

8.1.

Approve the following submitted by the Policy and Finance Committee:
a)

The revised revenue estimates for 2021/22 and the revenue estimates for
2022/23.

b)

The revised capital programme for 2021/22 and the three-year capital
programme for 2022/23 to 2024/25.

8.2.

Approve the prudential indicators, borrowing limits and MRP Policy Statement as set
out in Annex 1.

8.3.

Note that, under delegated powers in accordance with section 84 of the Local
Government Act 2003, the Council has determined the following amounts for 2022/23
in accordance with the Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base)
Regulations 1992 (as amended), as its council tax base for the year.
a)

24,553 being the amount of its council tax base for the whole district [item T in
the formula in section 31B of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, as
amended (the “Act”)]; and

b)

Parish Area
Aighton, Bailey & Chaigley
Balderstone
Barrow
Bashall Eaves, Great Mitton & Little Mitton
Billington & Langho
Bolton by Bowland, Gisburn Forest &
Sawley
Bowland Forest (High)
Bowland Forest (Low)
Bowland with Leagram
Chatburn
Chipping
Clayton le Dale
Clitheroe
Dinckley
Downham
Dutton
Gisburn
Grindleton
Horton
Hothersall
Longridge
Mearley
Mellor
Newsholme
Newton
Osbaldeston
6 of 31
1-22c

Page 8

Tax base
493
196
733
206
2,189
485
77
82
83
395
537
515
5,869
46
51
105
237
358
49
77
3,052
8
992
20
141
102

Parish Area
Paythorne
Pendleton
Ramsgreave
Read
Ribchester
Rimington & Middop
Sabden
Salesbury
Simonstone
Slaidburn & Easington
Thornley with Wheatley
Twiston
Waddington
West Bradford
Whalley
Wilpshire
Wiswell
Worston

Tax base
46
111
282
585
671
235
562
193
500
156
173
37
452
376
1,772
1,078
181
45
24,553

being the amounts calculated by the Council, in accordance with Regulation 6 of the
regulations, as the amounts of its council tax base for the year for dwellings in those
parts of its area to which one or more special items relate.
8.4.

Calculate that the Council Tax requirement for the Council’s own purposes for
2022/23 (excluding Parish precepts) is £3,945,422.

8.5.

Calculate the following amounts for 2022/23, in accordance with Sections 31 to 36 of
the Act:

7 of 31
1-22c

a) £31,347,407

Being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council
estimates for the items set out in Section 31A(2) of the Act
taking into account all precepts issued to it by Parish Councils.

b) £26,884,638

Being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council
estimates for the items set out in Section 31A(3) of the Act.

c) £4,462,769

Being the amount by which the aggregate at 8.5(a) above
exceeds the aggregate at 8.5(b) above, calculated by the
Council in accordance with Section 31A(4) of the Act as its
Council Tax requirement for the year. (Item R in the formula in
Section 31B of the Act).

d) £181.76

Being the amount at 8.5(c) above (Item R), all divided by Item
T (8.3(a) above), calculated by the Council, in accordance with
Section 31B of the Act, as the basic amount of its Council Tax
for the year (including Parish precepts).

Page 9

e) £517,347

Being the aggregate amount of all special items (Parish
precepts) referred to in Section 34(1) of the Act.

f)

Being the amount at 8.5(d) above less the result given by
dividing the amount at 8.5(e) above by Item T (8.3(a) above),
calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 34(2) of
the Act, as the basic amount of its Council Tax for the year for
dwellings in those parts of its area to which no Parish precept
relates.

£160.69

g) Aggregate of the basic amount of council tax for Ribble Valley Borough Council
and Parish precept for Band D properties:

Parts of the Council's area

8 of 31
1-22c

£

Aighton, Bailey & Chaigley

173.87

Balderstone

181.10

Barrow

189.34

Bashall Eaves, Great Mitton & Little Mitton

168.57

Billington & Langho

171.81

Bolton by Bowland, Gisburn Forest & Sawley

160.69

Bowland Forest Higher

188.83

Bowland Forest Lower

175.32

Bowland with Leagram

172.74

Chatburn

189.48

Chipping

181.51

Clayton le Dale

166.52

Clitheroe

181.28

Dinckley

160.69

Downham

160.69

Dutton

165.45

Gisburn

186.01

Grindleton

183.04

Horton

160.69

Hothersall

173.68

Longridge

188.09

Mearley

160.69

Mellor

185.89

Newsholme

160.69

Newton

171.33

Osbaldeston

170.49

Paythorne

160.69

Pendleton

177.36

Page 10

£

Parts of the Council's area
Ramsgreave

171.85

Read

181.17

Ribchester

178.31

Rimington & Middop

188.35

Sabden

188.95

Salesbury

185.56

Simonstone

177.49

Slaidburn & Easington

173.83

Thornley with Wheatley

169.36

Twiston

160.69

Waddington

201.65

West Bradford

181.11

Whalley

195.53

Wilpshire

178.92

Wiswell

199.50

Worston

160.69

Being the amount given by adding to the amount at 8.5(f) above to the amounts of
the special item or items relating to dwellings in those parts of the Council’s area
mentioned above divided in each case by the amount contained in 8.3(b), calculated
by the Council, in accordance with Section 34(3) of the Act, as the basic amounts of
its council tax for the year for dwellings in those parts of its area to which one or more
special items relate.
h) Aggregate of the basic amount of council tax for Ribble Valley Borough Council and
Parish precept for Band D properties by valuation band:
VALUATION BANDS
A
£

B
£

C
£

D
£

E
£

F
£

G
£

H
£

Aighton, Bailey &
Chaigley

115.92 135.23 154.56 173.87 212.51 251.15 289.79 347.74

Balderstone

120.74 140.85 160.98 181.10 221.35 261.59 301.84 362.20

Barrow

126.23 147.26 168.31 189.34 231.42 273.49 315.57 378.68

Bashall Eaves, Great
Mitton & Little Mitton

112.38 131.11 149.84 168.57 206.03 243.49 280.95 337.14

Billington & Langho

114.54 133.63 152.72 171.81 209.99 248.17 286.35 343.62

Bolton by Bowland,
107.13 124.98 142.84 160.69 196.40 232.11 267.82 321.38
Gisburn Forest & Sawley
Bowland Forest Higher

125.89 146.87 167.85 188.83 230.79 272.76 314.72 377.66

Bowland Forest Lower

116.88 136.36 155.84 175.32 214.28 253.24 292.20 350.64

Bowland with Leagram

115.16 134.35 153.55 172.74 211.13 249.52 287.90 345.48

9 of 31
1-22c

Page 11

VALUATION BANDS
A
£

B
£

C
£

D
£

E
£

F
£

G
£

H
£

Chatburn

126.32 147.37 168.43 189.48 231.59 273.70 315.80 378.96

Chipping

121.01 141.17 161.35 181.51 221.85 262.18 302.52 363.02

Clayton le Dale

111.02 129.51 148.02 166.52 203.53 240.53 277.54 333.04

Clitheroe

120.86 140.99 161.14 181.28 221.57 261.85 302.14 362.56

Dinckley

107.13 124.98 142.84 160.69 196.40 232.11 267.82 321.38

Downham

107.13 124.98 142.84 160.69 196.40 232.11 267.82 321.38

Dutton

110.30 128.68 147.07 165.45 202.22 238.99 275.75 330.90

Gisburn

124.01 144.67 165.35 186.01 227.35 268.68 310.02 372.02

Grindleton

122.03 142.36 162.71 183.04 223.72 264.39 305.07 366.08

Horton

107.13 124.98 142.84 160.69 196.40 232.11 267.82 321.38

Hothersall

115.79 135.08 154.39 173.68 212.28 250.87 289.47 347.36

Longridge

125.40 146.29 167.20 188.09 229.89 271.69 313.49 376.18

Mearley

107.13 124.98 142.84 160.69 196.40 232.11 267.82 321.38

Mellor

123.93 144.58 165.24 185.89 227.20 268.51 309.82 371.78

Newsholme

107.13 124.98 142.84 160.69 196.40 232.11 267.82 321.38

Newton

114.22 133.26 152.30 171.33 209.40 247.48 285.55 342.66

Osbaldeston

113.66 132.60 151.55 170.49 208.38 246.27 284.15 340.98

Paythorne

107.13 124.98 142.84 160.69 196.40 232.11 267.82 321.38

Pendleton

118.24 137.95 157.66 177.36 216.77 256.19 295.60 354.72

Ramsgreave

114.57 133.66 152.76 171.85 210.04 248.23 286.42 343.70

Read

120.78 140.91 161.04 181.17 221.43 261.69 301.95 362.34

Ribchester

118.88 138.68 158.50 178.31 217.94 257.56 297.19 356.62

Rimington & Middop

125.57 146.49 167.43 188.35 230.21 272.06 313.92 376.70

Sabden

125.97 146.96 167.96 188.95 230.94 272.93 314.92 377.90

Salesbury

123.71 144.32 164.95 185.56 226.80 268.03 309.27 371.12

Simonstone

118.33 138.05 157.77 177.49 216.93 256.38 295.82 354.98

Slaidburn & Easington

115.89 135.20 154.52 173.83 212.46 251.09 289.72 347.66

Thornley with Wheatley

112.91 131.72 150.55 169.36 207.00 244.63 282.27 338.72

Twiston

107.13 124.98 142.84 160.69 196.40 232.11 267.82 321.38

Waddington

134.44 156.84 179.25 201.65 246.46 291.27 336.09 403.30

West Bradford

120.74 140.86 160.99 181.11 221.36 261.61 301.85 362.22

Whalley

130.36 152.08 173.81 195.53 238.98 282.43 325.89 391.06

Wilpshire

119.28 139.16 159.04 178.92 218.68 258.44 298.20 357.84

Wiswell

133.00 155.17 177.34 199.50 243.83 288.17 332.50 399.00

Worston

107.13 124.98 142.84 160.69 196.40 232.11 267.82 321.38
being the amounts given by multiplying (as appropriate) the amounts at 8.5(f) or 8.5(g)
by the number which, in the proportion set out in Section 5(1) of the Act, is applicable
to dwellings listed in a particular valuation band divided by the number which in that
proportion is applicable to dwellings listed in valuation band D, calculated by the

10 of 31
1-22c

Page 12

Council, in accordance with Section 36(1) of the Act, as the amounts to be taken into
account for the year in respect of categories of dwellings listed in different valuation
bands.
8.6.

Note, that for 2022/23 Lancashire County Council has stated the following amounts
in precepts issued to the Council, in accordance with Section 40 of the Local
Government Finance Act 1992, for each of the categories of dwellings shown below.

Valuation Bands
A
£

B
£

C
£

D
£

E
£

F
£

G
£

1,009.53 1,177.78 1,346.04 1,514.29 1,850.80 2,187.31 2,523.82
8.7.

H
£
3,028.58

Note, that for 2022/23 the Police and Crime Commissioner for Lancashire has stated
the following amounts in precepts issued to the Council, in accordance with Section
40 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, for each of the categories of dwellings
shown below.

Valuation Bands
A
£

B
£

C
£

D
£

E
£

F
£

G
£

H
£

157.63

183.91

210.18

236.45

288.99

341.54

394.08

472.90

8.8.

Note, that for 2022/23 Lancashire Combined Fire Authority has stated the following
amounts in precepts issued to the Council, in accordance with Section 40 of the Local
Government Finance Act 1992, for each of the categories of dwellings shown below.

Valuation Bands

8.9.

11 of 31
1-22c

A
£

B
£

C
£

D
£

E
£

F
£

G
£

H
£

51.51

60.10

68.68

77.27

94.44

111.61

128.78

154.54

Having calculated the aggregate in each case of the amounts at 8.5(h), 8.6, 8.7 and
8.8 above, the Council, in accordance with Section 30(2) of the Act, hereby sets the
following amounts as the amounts of council tax for 2022/23 for each of the categories
of dwellings shown below:

Page 13

VALUATION BANDS
A
£

B
£

C
£

D
£

E
£

F
£

G
£

H
£

Aighton, Bailey &
Chaigley

1,334.59 1,557.02 1,779.46 2,001.88 2,446.74 2,891.61 3,336.47 4,003.76

Balderstone

1,339.41 1,562.64 1,785.88 2,009.11 2,455.58 2,902.05 3,348.52 4,018.22

Barrow

1,344.90 1,569.05 1,793.21 2,017.35 2,465.65 2,913.95 3,362.25 4,034.70

Bashall Eaves,
1,331.05 1,552.90 1,774.74 1,996.58 2,440.26 2,883.95 3,327.63 3,993.16
Great Mitton & Little
Mitton
Billington & Langho

1,333.21 1,555.42 1,777.62 1,999.82 2,444.22 2,888.63 3,333.03 3,999.64

Bolton by Bowland,
Gisburn Forest &
Sawley

1,325.80 1,546.77 1,767.74 1,988.70 2,430.63 2,872.57 3,314.50 3,977.40

Bowland Forest
(High)

1,344.56 1,568.66 1,792.75 2,016.84 2,465.02 2,913.22 3,361.40 4,033.68

Bowland Forest
(Low)

1,335.55 1,558.15 1,780.74 2,003.33 2,448.51 2,893.70 3,338.88 4,006.66

Bowland with
Leagram

1,333.83 1,556.14 1,778.45 2,000.75 2,445.36 2,889.98 3,334.58 4,001.50

Chatburn

1,344.99 1,569.16 1,793.33 2,017.49 2,465.82 2,914.16 3,362.48 4,034.98

Chipping

1,339.68 1,562.96 1,786.25 2,009.52 2,456.08 2,902.64 3,349.20 4,019.04

Clayton le Dale

1,329.69 1,551.30 1,772.92 1,994.53 2,437.76 2,880.99 3,324.22 3,989.06

Clitheroe

1,339.53 1,562.78 1,786.04 2,009.29 2,455.80 2,902.31 3,348.82 4,018.58

Dinckley

1,325.80 1,546.77 1,767.74 1,988.70 2,430.63 2,872.57 3,314.50 3,977.40

Downham

1,325.80 1,546.77 1,767.74 1,988.70 2,430.63 2,872.57 3,314.50 3,977.40

Dutton

1,328.97 1,550.47 1,771.97 1,993.46 2,436.45 2,879.45 3,322.43 3,986.92

Gisburn

1,342.68 1,566.46 1,790.25 2,014.02 2,461.58 2,909.14 3,356.70 4,028.04

Grindleton

1,340.70 1,564.15 1,787.61 2,011.05 2,457.95 2,904.85 3,351.75 4,022.10

Horton

1,325.80 1,546.77 1,767.74 1,988.70 2,430.63 2,872.57 3,314.50 3,977.40

Hothersall

1,334.46 1,556.87 1,779.29 2,001.69 2,446.51 2,891.33 3,336.15 4,003.38

Longridge

1,344.07 1,568.08 1,792.10 2,016.10 2,464.12 2,912.15 3,360.17 4,032.20

Mearley

1,325.80 1,546.77 1,767.74 1,988.70 2,430.63 2,872.57 3,314.50 3,977.40

Mellor

1,342.60 1,566.37 1,790.14 2,013.90 2,461.43 2,908.97 3,356.50 4,027.80

Newsholme

1,325.80 1,546.77 1,767.74 1,988.70 2,430.63 2,872.57 3,314.50 3,977.40

Newton

1,332.89 1,555.05 1,777.20 1,999.34 2,443.63 2,887.94 3,332.23 3,998.68

Osbaldeston

1,332.33 1,554.39 1,776.45 1,998.50 2,442.61 2,886.73 3,330.83 3,997.00

Paythorne

1,325.80 1,546.77 1,767.74 1,988.70 2,430.63 2,872.57 3,314.50 3,977.40

Pendleton

1,336.91 1,559.74 1,782.56 2,005.37 2,451.00 2,896.65 3,342.28 4,010.74

Ramsgreave

1,333.24 1,555.45 1,777.66 1,999.86 2,444.27 2,888.69 3,333.10 3,999.72

Read

1,339.45 1,562.70 1,785.94 2,009.18 2,455.66 2,902.15 3,348.63 4,018.36

Ribchester

1,337.55 1,560.47 1,783.40 2,006.32 2,452.17 2,898.02 3,343.87 4,012.64

12 of 31
1-22c

Page 14

VALUATION BANDS
A
£

B
£

C
£

D
£

E
£

F
£

G
£

H
£

Rimington &
Middop

1,344.24 1,568.28 1,792.33 2,016.36 2,464.44 2,912.52 3,360.60 4,032.72

Sabden

1,344.64 1,568.75 1,792.86 2,016.96 2,465.17 2,913.39 3,361.60 4,033.92

Salesbury

1,342.38 1,566.11 1,789.85 2,013.57 2,461.03 2,908.49 3,355.95 4,027.14

Simonstone

1,337.00 1,559.84 1,782.67 2,005.50 2,451.16 2,896.84 3,342.50 4,011.00

Slaidburn &
Easington

1,334.56 1,556.99 1,779.42 2,001.84 2,446.69 2,891.55 3,336.40 4,003.68

Thornley with
Wheatley

1,331.58 1,553.51 1,775.45 1,997.37 2,441.23 2,885.09 3,328.95 3,994.74

Twiston

1,325.80 1,546.77 1,767.74 1,988.70 2,430.63 2,872.57 3,314.50 3,977.40

Waddington

1,353.11 1,578.63 1,804.15 2,029.66 2,480.69 2,931.73 3,382.77 4,059.32

West Bradford

1,339.41 1,562.65 1,785.89 2,009.12 2,455.59 2,902.07 3,348.53 4,018.24

Whalley

1,349.03 1,573.87 1,798.71 2,023.54 2,473.21 2,922.89 3,372.57 4,047.08

Wilpshire

1,337.95 1,560.95 1,783.94 2,006.93 2,452.91 2,898.90 3,344.88 4,013.86

Wiswell

1,351.67 1,576.96 1,802.24 2,027.51 2,478.06 2,928.63 3,379.18 4,055.02

Worston

1,325.80 1,546.77 1,767.74 1,988.70 2,430.63 2,872.57 3,314.50 3,977.40

8.10.

To approve a change to the Local Council Tax Support to remove the 12% reduction
in support to working age claimants from 1 April 2022.

DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES
C1-22/JP/AC
24 FEBRUARY 2022
Supporting documents: Summary Budget Book 2022-23 – Draft
https://www.ribblevalley.gov.uk/info/200382/budgets_and_spending/1217/annual_budget_bo
oks

13 of 31
1-22c

Page 15

ANNEX 1
PRUDENTIAL CODE
In order to demonstrate that local authorities have fulfilled the objectives of the Prudential
Code, it sets out a basket of indicators that must be prepared and used. The required
indicators have to be set on a three year time frame and are designed to support and record
local decision-making.
CIPFA LASAAC has issued an exceptional consultation on time limited changes to the Code
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom, to help alleviate delays to
the publication of audited financial statements. This consultation includes proposals on
deferring the implementation of IFRS 16 Leases for a further year and reversing the planned
changes to the 2022/23 code to implement that standard. Whilst the consultation has not yet
closed, the Prudential Code has been prepared on the basis that the implementation of IFRS
16 Leases is deferred.
CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
1.

Capital expenditure is a significant source of risk and uncertainty since cost variations,
slippage, acceleration of major projects or changing specifications are often a feature
of large or complex capital programmes. Capital investment also carries risk in relation
to the availability of capital finance from capital receipts, grants and external
contributions.
As part of this indicator, we will undertake regular monitoring of the capital programme
throughout the financial year and report progress and any variations to the relevant
service committees and Policy and Finance Committee
The actual capital expenditure that was incurred in 2020/21 is shown alongside the
current and future years that are recommended for approval:
Capital Expenditure

Committee

Community
Services
Committee
Economic
Development
Committee
Health and
Housing
Committee
Planning and
Development
Committee
Policy and
Finance
Committee
Total

1 of 31
1-22c

Actual
Forecast
Forecast
Forecast
Forecast
Capital
Capital
Capital
Capital
Capital
Expenditure Expenditure Expenditure Expenditure Expenditure
for 2020/21 for 2021/22 for 2022/23 for 2023/24 for 2024/25
£
£
£
£
£
331,349

591,360

2,280,500

467,300

459,000

0

50,000

51,750

0

0

679,007

1,049,100

782,540

511,700

443,000

61,862

0

26,420

0

0

124,022

70,910

335,480

118,200

88,080

1,196,240

1,761,370

3,476,690

1,097,200

990,080

Page 16

ANNEX 1
PRUDENTIAL CODE
FINANCING COSTS
2.

The calculation of Financing Costs for the purposes of the Prudential Code includes
those items included under the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
section of the Council’s Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the
Statement of Accounts – but excluding pension interest costs and any gain or loss on
trading accounts.
For this council, this includes the interest we pay on our borrowing, interest we receive
on our investments and also the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP), being the means
by which capital expenditure financed by borrowing or credit arrangements is paid for
by council tax payers.
The table below summarises our net financing costs that were shown in the statement
of accounts for the 2020/21 financial year, and those forecast for the current and future
years.
Financing Costs
2020/21
Actual
£

Forecast for
2021/22
£

Forecast for
2022/23
£

Forecast for
2023/24
£

Forecast for
2024/25
£

110,751

60,270

114,863

112,210

77,262

NET REVENUE STREAM
3.

The calculation of the Net Revenue Stream for the purposes of the Prudential Code
includes those items included under the Taxation and non-Specific Grant Income
section of the Council’s Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the
Annual Statement of Accounts, but excludes capital receipts and capital grants.
Net Revenue Stream
2020/21
Actual
£
-9,550,483

2 of 31
1-22c

Forecast for
2021/22
£

Forecast for
2022/23
£

Forecast for
2023/24
£

Forecast for
2024/25
£

-8,081,571

-7,645,942

-8,150,153

-8,321,532

Page 17

ANNEX 1
PRUDENTIAL CODE
FINANCING COSTS TO NET REVENUE STREAM
4.

Estimates of the ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream for the current and future
years, and the actual figures for 2020/21 are shown in the table below. This indicator
uses the Financing Costs calculated above as a percentage of Net Revenue Streams,
also calculated above.
It should be noted that the calculation of these indicators relies heavily on the forecast
of future financial support from the government. As members will be aware there is a
substantial amount of uncertainty with regard to most elements of local government
finance.
Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream
2020/21
Actual
0.8%

Forecast for
2021/22

Forecast for
2022/23

Forecast for
2023/24

Forecast for
2024/25

1.4%

0.8%

1.4%

1.3%

As would be expected due to our low level of external borrowing, the percentage of
financing costs to net revenue stream is relatively low.
CAPITAL FINANCING REQUIREMENT
5.

The capital financing requirement measures the council’s underlying need to borrow
for a capital purpose, although this borrowing may not necessarily take place externally.
In accordance with best professional practice, the Council does not associate
borrowing with particular items or types of expenditure. The council has an integrated
capital and treasury management strategy and has adopted the CIPFA Code of
Practice for Treasury Management in the Public Services.
We have, at any point in time, a number of cash flows, both positive and negative, and
manage our treasury position in terms of our borrowings and investments in
accordance with our approved treasury management strategy and practices.
In day-to-day cash management we make no distinction between revenue cash and
capital cash. External borrowing arises as a consequence of all the financial
transactions of the authority and not simply those arising from capital spending. In
contrast, the capital financing requirements reflects the authority’s underlying need to
borrow for a capital purpose.

3 of 31
1-22c

Page 18

ANNEX 1
PRUDENTIAL CODE
Capital Financing Requirement
2020/21
Actual
£

Forecast for
2021/22
£

3,248,269

3,156,032

Forecast for
2022/23
£
4,344,368

Forecast for
2023/24
£
4,209,019

Forecast for
2024/25
£
4,075,835

EXTERNAL DEBT
6.

In respect of the Capital Financing Requirement, the level of external debt is a
consequence of a treasury management decision about the level of external borrowing.
The inclusion of total external debt in the Prudential Code means that it covers all
borrowing whether this is for capital or revenue. This is mainly due to the fact that our
daily treasury management activities make no distinction between revenue and capital
cash. External borrowing occurs as a result of all of a council’s transactions, not just
those arising from the capital programme.
External Debt
2020/21
Actual
£
PWLB
Borrowing

115,590

Forecast
for
2021/22
£
105,197

Forecast
for
2022/23
£
95,000

Forecast
for
2023/24
£
85,000

Forecast
for
2024/25
£
75,000

GROSS DEBT AND CAPITAL FINANCING REQUIREMENT
7.

The Prudential Code states that in order to ensure that over the medium term, debt will
only be for a capital purpose, the council should ensure that debt doesn’t, except in the
short term, exceed the total of capital financing requirement in the preceding year plus
the estimates of any additional capital financing requirement for the current and next
two financial years.
I can report that the council had no difficulty meeting this requirement in 2020/21, nor
are any difficulties envisaged for 2021/22 or the next three years. This view takes into
account current commitments, existing plans and the proposals in the Council’s budget
report.

4 of 31
1-22c

Page 19

ANNEX 1
PRUDENTIAL CODE
THE AUTHORISED LIMIT
8.

The authorised limit, like all the other prudential indicators, has to be approved and
revised by full council. It should not be set so high that it would never in any possible
circumstances be breached. It should reflect a level of borrowing which, while not
desired, could be afforded but may not be sustainable.
Any unanticipated revision to the council’s authorised limit would be a most exceptional
event that would trigger a review of all the prudential indicators. The authorised limit is
set to establish the outer boundary of the council’s borrowing based on a realistic
assessment of the risks. The authorised limit is certainly not a limit up to which the
council expects to borrow on a regular basis.
The authorised limit for external debt is the upper limit on the level of gross external
indebtedness, which must not be breached without council approval. It is the worstcase scenario.
Factored in to the setting of the authorised limit is the council’s role as the lead authority
of the Lancashire Business Rates Pool.
The limit separately identifies borrowing from other long-term liabilities such as finance
leases. The Council is asked to approve these limits and to delegate authority to me,
within the total limit for any individual year, to effect movement between the separately
agreed limits for borrowing and other long-term liabilities, in accordance with option
appraisal and best value for money for the council. Any such changes made will be
reported to the Council at its next meeting following the change.
Authorised Limit for External Debt
2022/23
£’000
Borrowing
Other Long-Term
Liabilities
Total

2023/24
£’000

2024/25
£’000

15,968

15,763

15,560

0

0

0

15,968

15,763

15,560

THE OPERATIONAL BOUNDARY
9.

This indicator focuses on the day-to-day treasury management activity within the
council. It is a way in which the council manages its external debt to ensure that it
remains within a self-imposed limit.
The Operational boundary is based on expectations of the maximum external debt of
the council according to probable events.
The Council is asked to approve the operational boundary for external debt. The
proposed operational boundary for external debt is based on the same estimates as
the authorised limit but reflects directly my estimate of the most likely prudent but not
worst case scenario, without the additional headroom included within the authorised

5 of 31
1-22c

Page 20

ANNEX 1
PRUDENTIAL CODE
limit to allow for example for unusual cash movements, and equates to the maximum
of external debt projected by this estimate.
The operational boundary represents a key management tool for in year monitoring by
my staff and me. Within the operational boundary, figures for borrowing and other longterm liabilities are separately identified. The Council is asked to delegate authority to
me, within the total operational boundary for any individual year, to effect movement
between the separately agreed figures for borrowing and other long term liabilities, in
a similar fashion to the authorised limit. Any such changes will be reported to the
Council at its next meeting following the change.
Operational Boundary for External Debt
2022/23
£’000
Borrowing
Other Long Term
Liabilities
Total

2023/24
£’000

2024/25
£’000

2,794

2,588

2,385

0

0

0

2,794

2,588

2,385

MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION
10.

The Council is required each year to pay off an element of its accumulated General
Fund capital expenditure through a revenue charge, the Minimum Revenue Provision
(MRP).
The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) issued
regulations which require Full Council to approve a MRP Policy Statement in advance
of each financial year. The following MRP Policy Statement is recommended for
2022/23.
Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement
a) For capital expenditure incurred before 1 April 2008 or which in the future will
be Supported Capital Expenditure, the MRP Policy will be to allow MRP equal
to 4% of the capital financing requirement (the element of which relates to
capital expenditure incurred before 1 April 2008) at the end of the previous
financial year.
b) For capital expenditure incurred after 1 April 2008, for all Unsupported
Borrowing the MRP Policy will be to follow the Asset Life Method (Equal
Instalment method), i.e. the MRP will be based upon the estimated life of the
assets financed from borrowing.

6 of 31
1-22c

Page 21

ANNEX 2
THREE YEAR CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2022/23 – 2024/25

2022/23
£

2023/24
£

2024/25
£

TOTAL
£

COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE
Play Area Improvements

45,000

45,000

46,000

136,000

Replacement of Refuse Wheelie Bins

13,000

14,000

15,000

42,000

Page 22

Castle Keep Lime Repointing Works and Repairs

327,300

327,300

Replacement of Refuse Iveco Tipper (PO60 AYK)

46,000

46,000

Replacement of Hustler Trimstar Mower x 2 (rvbc017 and rvbc018)

14,000

14,000

Replacement of John Deere Mower 4x4 (PE15 YVK)

25,000

25,000

Replacement of Kubota Mower PN09 KXP

25,000

25,000

Ribblesdale Pool Filter and Pipework Replacement

44,000

44,000

Replacement Football Goals

16,000

16,000

246,000

246,000

34,500

34,500

Replacement of Refuse Collection Vehicle (VN12 KYK)
Replacement of High Top Transit Van PJ63 WUC

7 of 31
1-22c

ANNEX 2
THREE YEAR CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2022/23 – 2024/25
2022/23
£
Salthill Depot Garage – Replace roller shutter doors and rewire garage
Replacement of Pay and Display machines
Clitheroe Town Centre Car Parking Scheme
(Moved from 2021/22)
Mardale Playing Pitches Drainage

2023/24
£

2024/25
£

TOTAL
£

25,000

25,000

123,800

123,800

1,215,000

1,215,000

80,900

80,900

Page 23

Roof Renewal and Upgrade to Parks Store Building in Castle Grounds

65,300

65,300

Longridge Depot 'Ambulance' Shed Refurbishment

42,900

42,900

253,500

253,500

Replacement of Concrete Bays to Rear of Depot

25,600

25,600

Replacement Kubota Mower PO15 HYJ

21,000

21,000

Replacement of Refuse Collection Vehicle PK63 JZP

Replacement Drain Jetter - trailer mounted
Replacement of Refuse Collection Vehicle VN65 WHR
Refurbishment of Mardale Playing Field Changing Rooms
(Subject to receipt of external funding)
Replacement of 2 Scag Mowers (rvbc014 + rvbc015) and 1 Scag 4x4 Mower
(rvbc016)
Replacement of Kubota Mower PO67 BNV
Total Community Services Committee

8 of 31
1-22c

2,280,500

467,300

18,000

18,000

261,000

261,000

76,000

76,000

22,000

22,000

21,000

21,000

459,000

3,206,800

ANNEX 2
THREE YEAR CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2022/23 – 2024/25
2022/23
£

2023/24
£

2024/25
£

TOTAL
£

HEALTH AND HOUSING COMMITTEE
Disabled Facilities Grants (external funding expected to cover all spend - TBC)
Landlord/Tenant Grants

Page 24

Landlord/Tenant Grants
(Balance Moved from 2021/22)
Clitheroe Market Improvements
(Moved from 2021/22)
Replacement of Pest Control Van PK13 FJP
(Moved from 2021/22)
Replacement of Dog Warden Van PE64 EYC
(Moved from 2021/22)
Joiners Arms Roof Renewal
(Moved from 2021/22)

393,000

393,000

393,000

1,179,000

50,000

50,000

50,000

150,000

186,740

186,740

78,600

78,600

16,000

16,000

16,000

16,000

42,200

42,200

Drainage to New Section of Clitheroe Cemetery
Total Health and Housing Committee

68,700
782,540

511,700

68,700
443,000

1,737,240

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE
Economic Development Initiatives
(Moved from 2021/22)

51,750

Total Economic Development Committee

51,750

9 of 31
1-22c

51,750
0

0

51,750

ANNEX 2
THREE YEAR CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2022/23 – 2024/25
2022/23
£

2023/24
£

2024/25
£

TOTAL
£

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE
Introduction of Planning Portal Link to the Planning Application System and Planning
System Update
(Moved from 2021/22)

26,420

Total Planning and Development Committee

26,420

26,420
0

0

26,420

POLICY AND FINANCE COMMITTEE

Page 25

Dewhurst Road, Langho – Resurfacing Works
(Moved from 2021/22)
Network Infrastructure
(Moved from 2021/22)
Committee Administration IT System
(Moved from 2021/22)
Financial System Upgrade
(Moved from 2021/22)

62,850

62,850

30,000

30,000

7,600

7,600

8,430

8,430

Brookfoot Footbridge, Ribchester – Replacement of Bridge

110,000

110,000

ICT Infrastructure Refresh

116,600

116,600

Revenues and Benefits Replacement Server

27,400

27,400

Cyber Security Solutions Refresh

58,300

58,300

10 of 31
1-22c

ANNEX 2
THREE YEAR CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2022/23 – 2024/25
2022/23
£

2023/24
£

2024/25
£

TOTAL
£

Replacement Air Conditioning Units in Server Room

10,000

10,000

E-Recruitment System

22,500

22,500

Replacement PCs

66,000

66,000

Firewall Refresh

22,080

22,080

Total Policy and Finance Committee

Page 26

Total for all Committees

11 of 31
1-22c

335,480

118,200

88,080

541,760

3,476,690

1,097,200

990,080

5,563,970

ANNEX 2
THREE YEAR CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2022/23 – 2024/25
2022/23
£

2023/24
£

2024/25
£

TOTAL
£

FINANCED FROM:
Grants and Contributions
Disabled Facility Grants
Section 106 monies (S106)

-393,000

-393,000

-393,000

-80,900

-1,179,000
-80,900

External Funding for Mardale Playing Field Changing Rooms

-30,000

-30,000

Borrowing

Page 27

Borrowing

-1,293,600

-1,293,600

Earmarked Reserves
VAT Shelter Earmarked Reserve

-236,430

-50,000

-286,430

Capital Earmarked Reserve

-120,370

-310,082

-430,452

New Homes Bonus Earmarked Reserve

-70,960

-306,637

-377,597

ICT Renewals Earmarked Reserve

-24,241

Vehicle Renewals Earmarked Reserve

-37,500

-13,530

-51,030

Fleming VAT Earmarked Reserve

-38,272

-5,451

-43,723

Refuse (Wheeled Bins) Earmarked Reserve

-13,000

-14,000

12 of 31
1-22c

-63,400

-15,000

-87,641

-42,000

ANNEX 2
THREE YEAR CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2022/23 – 2024/25
2022/23
£
Business Rates Growth Earmarked Reserve
Transparency Grant (Equipment Earmarked Reserve)

-803,737

2023/24
£
-4,500

2024/25
£
-488,680

TOTAL
£
-1,296,917

-8,430

-8,430

-356,250

-356,250

Usable Capital Receipts
Usable Capital Receipts
Total Resources

Page 28
13 of 31
1-22c

-3,476,690

-1,097,200

-990,080

-5,563,970

ANNEX 3
REVENUE BUDGET
Original
Estimate
2021/22
£
Planning and Development

Revised
Estimate
2021/22
£

Original
Estimate
2022/23
£

586,760

532,010

595,240

4,167,170

4,305,920

4,561,820

314,050

293,720

357,890

Health and Housing

1,053,130

710,600

1,146,180

Policy and Finance
Committee Net Requirements
Capital Charges Adjustment
- Remove Depreciation
- Replace with Minimum Revenue Provision
Total Expenditure
External Interest - Payable
Interest - Earned
New Homes Bonus
Rural Services Delivery Grant
Lower Tier Services Grant
2022/23 Services Grant
Covid Emergency Funding (RNF)
Contingency for Inflation
Contingency for Feasibility Study Edisford Car Park
Contingency for Covid-19 Income Losses
Business Rates
- Retained Rates Income
- Renewable Energy
- Section 31 Grant for Business Rates
- 10% of Retained Levy – Payable to LCC
- Share of Business Rates Deficit/(Surplus) on
Collection Fund
Less Added to/(taken from) Earmarked Reserves
- Relating to Planning & Development Committee
Building Control Fee Earning
Whalley Moor Woodland Grant Reserve
Equipment Reserve
Planning Reserve
- Relating to Community Services Committee
Crime Reduction Partnership Reserve
Repairs and Maintenance Reserve
Capital Reserve
Exercise Referral Reserve
Grounds Maintenance Tuition Reserve
Local Recreation Grants

2,257,180
8,378,290

2,175,890
8,018,140

2,416,030
9,077,160

-889,470
107,240
7,596,060
5,510
-50,000
-1,515,848
-113,250
-57,696
0
0
0
10,000
150,000

-884,260
107,240
7,241,120
5,510
-2,000
-1,515,848
-113,250
-57,696
0
-242,180
0
0
0

-951,320
104,890
8,230,730
5,010
-50,000
-1,205,836
-113,250
-61,960
-93,368
0
140,000
10,000
50,000

-379,936
-95,687
-1,196,502
69,296

-379,936
-100,000
-2,867,784
90,199

503,075
-95,687
-2,478,285
82,429

2,725,770

2,725,770

1,749,431

-23,500
0
0
0

6,120
-4,520
-620
-3,000

-23,610
0
0
0

-14,620
0
0
0
0
0

-7,280
-4,500
12,600
-1,950
-1,780
-24,740

-15,060
0
0
-6,550
0
0

Community Services
Economic Development

14 of 31
1-22c

Page 29

ANNEX 3
REVENUE BUDGET

Arts Development Reserve
LA Parks Improvement Funding
Equipment Reserve
Refuse Collection Reserve
Amenity Cleansing Reserve
Food Festival Reserve
- Relating to Economic Development Committee
Promotional Activities
Restoring your Railways Reserve
- Relating to Health and Housing Committee
Equipment Reserve
Government Housing Grants
- Relating to Policy and Finance Committee
Elections
Repairs and Maintenance Reserve
Equipment Reserve
Cyber Resilience Grant Reserve
Two Way Radio Reserve
Business Rates Growth Reserve
Performance Reward Grants Reserve
Parish Grants Reserve
Add to VAT Shelter
Invest to Save Reserve
Covid-19 Reserve (Use of)
Covid-19 Reserve (Contribution to)
Self-Isolation Discretionary Grant Fund
Revaluation of Assets Reserve
- Corporate Movements in Earmarked Reserves
Added to New Homes Bonus Reserve
Business Rates Volatility Reserve
Business Rates S31 Grant Adj Reserve 20/21
Business Rates S31 Grant Adj Reserve 21/22
Business Rates Growth Reserve - Balance
(Taken)/Added
Post LSVT Reserve
Tax Income Guarantee Reserve
General Balances
Net Expenditure
Parish Precepts
15 of 31
1-22c

Page 30

Original
Estimate
2021/22
£
0
0
0
-9,210
0
-8,600

Revised
Estimate
2021/22
£
-3,190
-4,100
-6,820
11,170
0
0

Original
Estimate
2022/23
£
0
0
0
-5,820
-19,370
-8,530

0
0

-5,330
-7,490

0
0

-500
42,820

-4,480
32,860

-500
0

30,000
0
0
-13,600
0
0
0
0
0
5,510
0
0
0
2,190

31,270
-5,260
-2,000
0
-20
-6,680
0
-20,000
23,150
5,430
-54,790
125,010
62,750
2,420

30,000
0
0
-13,600
0
0
-10,000
0
0
2,000
12,400
0
0
2,420

410,848
-97,015
-2,578,153
0

410,848
0
-2,578,153
1,640,761

100,836
0
0
-1,640,761

659,663
-36,512
0

673,594
-36,512
-119,388

788,149
-36,512
0

-400,000
5,117,038
503,609

197,753
5,117,038
503,609

-412,422
5,415,359
517,347

ANNEX 3
REVENUE BUDGET
Original
Estimate
2021/22
£
5,620,647

Budget Requirement
Less Settlement Funding Assessment
– Revenue Support Grant
– Business Rates Baseline
Council Tax (Surplus)/Deficit
Precept
Taxbase
Council Tax
Council Tax (including Parishes)

16 of 31
1-22c

Revised
Estimate
2021/22
£
5,620,647

Original
Estimate
2022/23
£
5,932,706

0
0
-1,354,393 -1,354,393

-215
-1,354,393
-115,329
4,462,769
24,553
160.69
181.76

-24,995
4,241,259
24,007
155.69
176.67

Page 31

-24,995
4,241,259
24,007
155.69
176.67

ANNEX 4
COLLECTION FUND

Collection Fund
EXPENDITURE
Council Tax
Precepts:
Lancashire County Council
Lancashire Police and Crime Commissioner
Lancashire Combined Fire Authority
Ribble Valley including Parishes
Allocation of Surplus:
Lancashire County Council
Lancashire Police and Crime Commissioner
Lancashire Combined Fire Authority
Ribble Valley including Parishes
Overpayment of Council Tax Benefit
Covid Hardship Payments
Bad Debts Provision
Expenditure Subtotal - Council Tax
Business Rates
Deficit Brought Forward
Adjustment for 3 Year Spread
Cost of Collection
Enterprise Zones
Renewable Energy Schemes

17 of 31
1-22c

Original
2021/22

Revised
2021/22

Original
2022/23

£

£

£

34,958,753 34,958,753 37,180,362
5,436,385
5,436,385
5,805,557
1,734,986
1,734,986
1,897,211
4,241,259
4,241,259
4,462,769
197,548
29,830
9,996
24,995

197,548
950,605
29,830
147,827
9,996
47,178
24,995
115,329
176
2,337
350,414
200,000
372,891
46,984,166 46,836,265 50,979,729

6,760,051
92,240
123,112
95,687

Page 32

8,235,132
-178,733
92,240
122,673
100,000

4,373,579
92,868
100,788
95,687

ANNEX 4
COLLECTION FUND

Collection Fund

Original
2021/22

Revised
2021/22

Original
2022/23

£

£

£

EXPENDITURE
Distribution of Business Rates
Central Government
Ribble Valley
Lancashire County Council
Lancashire Combined Fire Authority
Appeals Provision
Bad Debts Provision
Transitional Protection
Expenditure Subtotal - Business Rates

7,557,192
6,453,428
6,045,753
5,162,742
1,360,294
1,161,617
151,144
129,069
107,405
555,629
200,000
138,907
2,776
23,109,622 23,795,876 18,264,314

TOTAL EXPENDITURE

70,093,788 70,632,141 69,244,043

INCOME
Council Tax
Surplus Brought Forward
Council Tax Income
Council Tax Benefit
Family Annexes Discount
Income Subtotal - Council Tax

262,369
546,194
1,260,939
46,721,797 47,538,315 49,718,790
3,531
9,164
46,984,166 48,097,204 50,979,729

7,557,192
6,045,753
1,360,294
151,144
488,729
435,420

Business Rates
Surplus Brought Forward
Net Rates Payable (before appeals)
Transitional Protection
Distribution of Business Rates Deficit
Central Government
Ribble Valley
Lancashire County Council
Lancashire Combined Fire Authority
Income Subtotal - Business Rates

3,346,042
3,346,042
2,186,789
2,725,770
2,725,770
1,749,431
619,959
619,959
393,622
68,280
68,280
43,736
23,109,622 19,422,297 18,264,314

TOTAL INCOME

70,093,788 67,519,501 69,244,043

16,291,000 12,662,246 13,890,736
58,571

Council Tax (Surplus)/Deficit
Business Rates (Surplus)/Deficit

0
0

-1,260,938
4,373,579

0
0

OVERALL SURPLUS FOR YEAR

0

3,112,641

0

18 of 31
1-22c

Page 33

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 12
Minutes of Planning and Development
Meeting Date:
Present:

Thursday, 6 January 2022, starting at 6.30 pm
Councillor A Brown (Chair)

Councillors:
I Brown
S Brunskill
B Buller
S Carefoot
L Edge
M French

B Holden
K Horkin
S O'Rourke
J Rogerson
R Sherras

In attendance: Director of Economic Development and Planning, Director of
Resources and Head of Legal and Democratic Services
517

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence for the meeting were received from Councillors J Clark, A
Humphreys and M Robinson.

518

TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
The minutes of the meeting held on 2 December 2021 were approved as a correct
record and signed by the Chairman.

519

DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY, OTHER REGISTRABLE AND
NON REGISTRABLE INTERESTS
Councillor Horkin declared he owned businesses in Clitheroe.

520

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
There was no public participation.

521

PLANNING APPLICATIONS UNDER THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT
1990

522

PLANNING APPLICATION 3/2021/0720 - TWYN GHYLL CARAVAN SITE,
PAYTHORNE
RESOLVED:
That the application be refused for the following reason:
The proposed development would result in a significant encroachment of built form
into undeveloped agricultural land to the south of the existing caravan park and would
be an unacceptable intensification of the use which fails to acknowledge the historic
rural character of the surrounding area due to its scale and siting. The economic
benefits of the scheme are not considered to outweigh the harm. As such the
proposal is considered to be contrary to policies DMG2 and DMB3 and EN2 of the
Core strategy for the Ribble Valley.
(Simon Pemberton spoke in favour of the above application. Stella Rosthorn spoke
against the above application)

Page 35

(i)

Planning Application 3/2021/1042 - Land rear of 16 Whiteacre Lane, Barrow
Withdrawn from the agenda.

523

PLANNING APPLICATION 3/2021/0760 - SPRINGWOOD DRIVE, WHALLEY
RESOLVED:
That the application be deferred and delegated to the Director of Economic
Development and Planning for approval following the satisfactory completion of a
Legal Agreement, within 3 months from the date of this Committee meeting or
delegated to the Director of Economic Development and Planning in conjunction with
the Chairperson and Vice Chairperson of Planning and Development Committee
should exceptional circumstances exist beyond the period of 3 months and subject to
the following conditions:
Plans
1.

Unless explicitly required by condition within this consent, the development
hereby permitted shall be carried out in complete accordance with the
proposals as detailed on drawings:
Plans
Location Plan AA7403-2001 Rev C
Materials layout AA7403C 2012 Rev F
Materials schedule AA7403 – 01-13 001
Site layout AA7403C 2010 Rev F
Proposed Unit Mix AA7403C 2011 Rev U
Proposed Boundary layout: AA7403 2015 Rev: C
Proposed Boundary Treatments: AA7403 2014 Rev: C
Supporting Documents
Wildlife Movement Report
Bat Roost Assessment
Bat Emergence Survey
Breeding Bird Check
Biodiversity Enhancement
House Types
House Type C, D, E and K
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and to clarify which plans are relevant
to the consent hereby approved.

Materials
2.

The materials to be used on the external surfaces of the development hereby
approved shall be implemented as per approved on the material schedule re
AA7403 – 01-13 001 as follows:
Forticrete Anstone Walling - Olde Heather Black
Forterra Light Buff Brick - Cathedral Cream
Dark Brick - Michelmerch - Blockleys Synthesis S09
Through Coloured White Render
Mid-Grey Windows (Upvc)
Dark Grey Rainwater Goods

Page 36

REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority may ensure that the
materials to be used are appropriate to the locality and respond positively to
the inherent character of the area.
Boundary Treatments
3.

The boundary treatments to be used in the development hereby approved
shall be implemented as per the approved plans
REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority may ensure that the
materials to be used are appropriate to the locality and respond positively to
the inherent character of the area.

Landscape and Ecology
4.

Notwithstanding the submitted details, the first dwelling on the site shall not be
occupied until full details of the timings and phasing of the equipping of the
public open space provision, play areas and delivery of the trim-trail/cycleways have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.
For the avoidance of doubt the submitted details shall provide the details of
the numbers of dwellings, within a phase, to be constructed/occupied prior to
each area of usable public open space becoming fully equipped/available for
use. The provision and equipping of such areas shall thereafter be carried out
in strict accordance with the approved details including the agreed timetable
for implementation.
REASON: To ensure the adequate provision for public open space and play
areas is brought forward in an appropriate phased manner to serve
occupiers/residents of the development and wider community.

5.

The landscaping proposals hereby approved shall be implemented in the first
planting season following occupation or use of the first dwelling, whether in
whole or part and shall be maintained thereafter for a period of not less than
10 years to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.
All trees/hedgerow shown as being retained within the approved details shall
be retained as such in perpetuity.
REASON: To ensure the proposal is satisfactorily landscaped and
trees/hedgerow of landscape/visual amenity value are retained as part of the
development.

6.

The provisions for building dependant species shall be implemented in
accordance with the approved details as follows:
REASON: In the interests of biodiversity and to enhance nesting/roosting
opportunities for species of conservation concern and to minimise/mitigate the
potential impacts upon protected species resultant from the development

7.

During the construction period, all trees as shown to be retained within the
submitted Tree and hedgerow Survey Report (August 2018 18-0886.02) shall
be protected in accordance with British Standard BS 5837 (2012) or any
subsequent amendment to the British Standard.

Page 37

All protective fencing shall be in accordance with BS5837 (2012): 'Trees in
Relation to Construction' and be erected in its entirety prior to any other
operations taking place on the site. The agreed tree protection shall remain in
place and be maintained for the duration of the construction phase of the
development. For the avoidance of doubt no vehicle, plant, temporary
building or materials, including raising and or, lowering of ground levels, shall
be allowed within the protection areas(s) specified.
REASON: To protect trees/hedging of landscape and visual amenity value on
and adjacent to the site or those likely to be affected by the proposed
development hereby approved.
8.

No removal of vegetation including trees or hedges shall be undertaken within
the nesting bird season (1st March - 31st August inclusive) unless a preclearance check on the day of removal, by a licenced ecologist, confirms the
absence of nesting birds. A letter from the ecologist confirming the absence
of nesting birds shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority within one
month of the pre-clearance check being undertaken.
REASON: To ensure that there are no adverse effects on the favourable
conservation status of birds, to protect the bird population and species of
importance or conservation concern from the potential impacts of the
development.

9.

Notwithstanding the submitted details, precise details including a long-term
management plan and timings of planting of the landscape buffer margin to
the west of plots 143-150 (Proposed Unit Mix Plan AA7403 2011 Rev: R) shall
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority prior to the construction of any of the aforementioned plot numbers.
The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved
details/timings and the approved long-term management plan for the area
shall be adhered to for the lifetime of the development.
REASON: To ensure the proposal is satisfactorily landscaped and appropriate
to the locality and to ensure that adequate landscape mitigation is provided at
an appropriate stage in development to successfully minimise the impacts of
the development upon existing neighbouring occupiers.

10.

No works to or within 5m of the tree identified as having bat roosting potential
(Figure 5 - Ecological Appraisal September 2018) shall be undertaken unless
further surveys are undertaken, as specified in section 6.0 of the
aforementioned report, have first been submitted to and agreed in writing by
the Local Planning Authority.
The mitigation measures shall be implemented in accordance with the
approved details as follows:
Wildlife Movement Report
Bat Roost Assessment
Bat Emergence Survey
Breeding Bird Check
Biodiversity Enhancement Measures
REASON: In the interests of biodiversity and to enhance nesting/roosting
opportunities for species of conservation concern and to minimise/mitigate the
potential impacts upon protected species resultant from the development

Page 38

Highways
11.

The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved
Construction Management Plan, Construction and Environmental
management Plan Rev: A March 2021
REASON: To limit the number of access points to the highway network and
mitigate the potential negative impacts of construction traffic upon the safe
operation of the immediate highway network within Whalley.

12.

There shall be no occupation of any of the approved dwellings within the
development hereby permitted until such time as the parking and turning
facilities have been implemented in accordance with PRP drawing number
Rev H. Thereafter the onsite parking provision shall be so maintained in
perpetuity.
REASON: To ensure that adequate off-street parking provision is made to
reduce the possibility of the proposed development leading to on-street
parking problems locally, and to enable vehicles to enter and leave the site in
a forward direction, in the interests of highway safety.

13.

Prior to the first occupation of any of the dwellings hereby approved, details of
electric vehicle charging points for each dwelling shall have been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority unless otherwise
agreed. These shall be installed prior to the first occupation of each dwelling
and thereafter retained as such.
REASON: To support sustainable transport objectives and contribute to the
reduction of harmful carbon emissions.

Water management
14.

There shall be no occupation of any of the approved dwellings within the
development hereby permitted, until final details of the design, based on
sustainable drainage principles, and implementation of an appropriate surface
water sustainable drainage scheme have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Those details shall include, as a
minimum:
a) Information about the lifetime of the development, design storm period and
intensity, temporary surface water storage facilities, details of the methods
employed to delay and control surface water discharged from the site,
details of any measures taken to prevent flooding and pollution of the
receiving groundwater and/or surface waters, including watercourses, and
details of flood levels in AOD;
b) The drainage strategy should demonstrate that post development surface
water run-off from the application site will not exceed a maximum rate of
57.7 L/s. The scheme shall subsequently be implemented in accordance
with the approved details before the development is completed;
c) A site layout plan showing flood water exceedance routes, both on and off
site;
d) A timetable for implementation, including phasing as applicable;
e) Details of water quality controls, where applicable.
f) Details of an appropriate management and maintenance plan for the
surface water drainage scheme for the lifetime of the development. This
should also include details regarding the future management and

Page 39

maintenance of any ordinary watercourses located within or adjacent to
the application site.
The scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details
prior to first occupation of any of the approved dwellings, or completion of the
development, whichever is the sooner. Thereafter the drainage system and
ordinary watercourses shall be retained, managed and maintained in
accordance with the approved details.
REASON: To ensure that the proposed development can be adequately
drained, to ensure that there is no flood risk on or off the site resulting from the
proposed development, to ensure that water quality is not detrimentally
impacted by the development proposal and to ensure that appropriate
maintenance mechanisms are put in place for the lifetime of the development.
15.

Notwithstanding the submitted details, there should be no occupation of the
first dwelling until the means of ensuring the water mains that are laid within
the site boundary are protected from damage as a result of the development
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority in writing. The details shall outline the potential impacts on the water
mains from construction activities and the impacts post completion of the
development on the water mains infrastructure that crosses the site and
identify mitigation measures to protect and prevent any damage to the water
mains. Any mitigation measures shall be implemented in full in accordance
with the approved details.
REASON: In the interest of public health and to ensure protection of the public
water supply.

16.

The drainage for the development hereby approved, shall be carried out in
accordance with principles set out in the submitted Foul & Surface Water
Drainage Design Drawing D0102, Rev P2 - Dated Aug 18 which was prepared
by Civic Engineers. For the avoidance of doubt no surface water will be
permitted to drain directly or indirectly into the public sewer.
The
development shall be completed in strict accordance with the approved
details.
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory form of development and to prevent an
undue increase in surface water run-off and to reduce the risk of flooding.

17.

The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved
details of the pumping-station/sub-station and/or all utility-structures/buildings
and their precise location as follows:
APT-ED revision 05
REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority may ensure that the
detailed design of the proposal is appropriate to the locality and responds
appropriately to the character of the area.

(Members queried resuming the provision of paper copies of the plans displayed at
Committee which was noted for consideration by the Director of Economic
Development and Planning)

Page 40

524

REVISED REVENUE BUDGET 2021/22
The Director of Resources submitted a report asking committee to agree a revised
revenue budget for 2021/22 for this committee.
She reminded committee that at this time of year the estimates are revised for the
current financial year in order to predict the likely outturn on the budget. The budget
this year had been particularly impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic.
Whilst committee income and expenditure may increase or decrease at the revised
estimate, items such as budgeted core government funding and council tax precept
remain fixed. As a result, any compensating movement is within earmarked reserves
and general fund balances. Decisions and actions required as a result of committee
meetings have been incorporated into the budget setting process.
She informed committee that the difference between the revised and original estimate
was a decrease in net expenditure of £54,750, or £33,270 after allowing for
movements on earmarked reserves. A number of substantial movements were
summarised for members’ information.
Members asked questions with regard to staff recruitment and the effect on the
planning service.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
Agree the revenue revised estimate for 2021/22.

525

ORIGINAL REVENUE BUDGET 2022/23
The Director of Resources submitted a report outlining the draft revenue budget for
approval by committee and then consideration at Special Policy and Finance
committee.
The Council’s three-year budget forecast had been presented to Policy and Finance
committee in September 2021 when it predicted that there would be the following
budget gaps: £82k in 2022/23, £139k in 2023/24 and £230k in 2024/25, after allowing
for use of general fund balances.
Since that time there had been a number of significant changes affecting the budget.
These included significant rises in inflation, an increase in national insurance
contributions and implementation of a new pay line. Therefore, the budget gap for
2022/23 was estimated to increase to around £497k.
The provisional local government finance settlement announced in December 2021
was for just one year, with a national increase of 6.9% in Council’s core spending
power in cash terms between 2021/22 and next year. This is the fourth one-year
settlement in a row.
Headlines for Ribble Valley include




Core spending power set to increase by only 0.2% (£11,000) next year from
£6.849m to £6.860m;
Business Rate Baseline funding level is £1.354m which is the same as the
current year, however £111k compensation will be received due to the loss of
income received by freezing the business rate multiplier;
An allocation of Revenue Support Grant (RSG) of £215 despite RSG
increasing nationally by 3.1% for inflation;

Page 41









Rural Services Delivery Grant of £113,250 – same as the current year;
Lower Tier Services Grant of £60,754 up from £57,696;
A new one off 2022/23 Services Grant has been announced worth £822m in
recognition of services and includes costs of the increase in NI contributions.
Ribble Valley will receive £93,368;
New Homes Bonus (NHB) – the Government have allowed a new round of
NHB allocations for 2022/23 which will not attract any legacy payments. They
have also allowed the one remaining legacy payment of £464k which has
been allowed for. Next year there will be a payment of £741k for 2022/23
along with the legacy payment of £464k = ££1.2m;
The Lancashire Business Rate Pool has received designation to continue;
and,
The Council Tax can be increased by £5

Taking these things into account reduces the budget gap from £497k to 233k.
The Director of Resources reminded members that the fees and charges for this
committee had been approved at their last meeting, and the consequential impact
had been incorporated into the service budgets.
Once all committees had approved their detailed estimates, the overall position would
be considered by the Budget Working Group and recommendations in order to
produce a balanced budget would be made to Special Policy and Finance committee,
before being presented to Full Council, at which point the Council Tax for 2022/23
would also be approved.
The draft proposed budget for 2022/23 was set out for each service area, built up
over a number of stages including inflation, movements in expenditure, income,
support services and capital, culminating in a draft original estimate.
In the original estimate for 2021/22 it was planned that this committee take £23,500
from earmarked reserves to support its expenditure in future years. It was now
proposed to take £23,610 in 2022/23. The reason for this was outlined.
The net expenditure for this committee has increased from £563,260 by £8,370 to
£571,630 after allowing for associated movements on earmarked reserves. The main
reasons were summarised for committee’s information.
There had also been two requests for growth items



Ash Die Back Management Plan - £7,000
Planning Applications; Biodiversity Net Gain Assessments - £4,100

RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
1. Approve the revenue original estimate for 2022/23 and submit this to the
Special Policy and Finance committee, and
2. Support the identified growth items set out in the report.
526

REVISED CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2021/22
The Director of Resources submitted a report asking committee to approve the
2021/22 revised estimate for this committee’s capital programme.
One scheme totalling £26,420 had been approved by Special Policy and Finance
committee and full Council in February and March 2021 respectively. The scheme

Page 42

had been moved from the 2020/21 capital programme to the 2021/22 capital
programme.
As there would be no spend on the Introduction of Planning Portal Link to the
Planning Application System and Planning System Update scheme in 2021/22, it was
proposed to move it forward to 2022/23 and reduce the 2021/22 budget to nil.
A wider capital bid had been proposed ‘Software Upgrade for Regulatory Services’
which would include an upgrade to the planning system if approved.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
1. Approve the 2021/22 revised estimate of nil for this committee’s capital
programme, and
2. Approve the move of £26,420 capital budget from 2021/22 to 2022/23 for the
Introduction of Planning Portal Link to the Planning Application System and
Planning System Update scheme.
527

LOCAL PLAN REVIEW - PUBLIC TRANSPORT POSITION PAPER
The Director of Economic Development and Planning submitted a report informing
members on public transport provision within the borough arising from a Public
Transport Position Paper.
The study indicated that Ribble Valley’s Public Transport Network currently provides
important services to the public, offering residents of many settlements in the borough
the ability to access major destinations with relatively quick journey times. Although
the use of private vehicle is high, public transport plays an important part within the
borough by connecting isolated communities and enabling access to key shops and
services.
As the Council is not the public transport authority for the area, the findings would be
published as part of the evidence base for the Local Plan.

528

INFRASTRUCTURE FUNDING STATEMENT 2020/21
The Director of Economic Development and Planning submitted a report for
information updating members on Section 106 Agreements and their implementation,
as shown through the annual Infrastructure Funding Statement.
The total Section 106 balance for the period 1 April 2020 – 31 March 2021 is
calculated at £767,524.67. Then this is added to the balance at the end of the
previous monitoring period, the total balance of Section 106 contributions currently
stands at £1,601,342.41.

529

MINUTES OF JOINT WORKING GROUP - CLIMATE CHANGE AND LOCAL
DEVELOPMENT PLAN
The minutes of the joint working group of Climate Change and Local Development
Plan were received by committee for their information.

530

APPEALS
3/2020/0057 and 0058 – demolition and reconfiguration of existing 20th Century
extensions, new extensions, and new garaging with associated landscaping at

Page 43

Oxendale Hall, Osbaldeston, BB2 7LZ – appeals allowed for both permission and
listed building consent.
3/2020/0057 and 0058 – application for costs – refused.
3/2021/0227 – alterations, extension, detached garage and external works at 2
Pinfold, Knowles Brow, Hurst Green, BB7 9QX – appeal dismissed.
3/2021/0462 – rear boundary fence, garden shed and garden room/office at 1 Park
Road, Gisburn – application dismissed for garden shed/room/office and appeal
allowed for boundary fence.
3/2021/0404 – erection of a timber outbuilding to provide for garaging, stage and first
floor home office at Oxenhurst Cottage, Back Lane, Slaidburn, BB7 3EE – appeal
dismissed.
3/2021/0287 – erection of 1no. dwelling within garden boundary of existing dwelling at
The Old Barn, Bowfields Lane, Balderstone, BB2 7LW – appeal dismissed.
3/2021/0469 – detached garage/store on land to the west of Glebe Barn, Main Street,
Gisburn, BB7 4HR – appeal dismissed.
3/2020/1062 – single storey extension to existing 1 bed bungalow(dwelling).
Extension to existing domestic curtilage at Seven Acre Bungalow, Forty Acre Lane,
Longridge, PR3 2TY – appeal allowed with conditions.
531

REPORTS FROM REPRESENTATIVES ON OUTSIDE BODIES
There were no reports from representatives on outside bodies.

532

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
There were no items under this heading.

The meeting closed at 7.16 pm
If you have any queries on these minutes please contact the committee clerk, Olwen
Heap olwen.heap@ribblevalley.gov.uk.

Page 44

Minutes of Community Services
Meeting Date:
Present:

Tuesday, 11 January 2022, starting at 6.30 pm
Councillor R Newmark (Chair)

Councillors:
J Alcock
D Birtwhistle
S Brunskill
R Elms
S Fletcher

G Mirfin
S O'Rourke
S Rainford
G Scott

In attendance: Director of Community Services, Director of Resources, Head of
Engineering Services, Head of Leisure and Cultural Services and Head of Legal and
Democratic Services
Not in attendance: Councillor S Carefoot
533

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for the meeting were received from Councillors S Atkinson, A Humphreys,
M Robinson and J Schumann.

534

TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
The minutes of the meeting held on 19 October 2021 were approved as a correct
record and signed by the Chairman.

535

DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY, OTHER REGISTRABLE AND
NON-REGISTRABLE INTERESTS
There were no declarations of disclosable pecuniary, other registrable or nonregistrable interests.

536

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
The Chairman welcomed both Mr Burke and Mr Claydon to the meeting to speak on
agenda item 9 – Clitheroe Town Wells.
Mr Burke made several requests of the committee when considering the outcome of
the future of the town wells including references to a previously-submitted Freedom of
Information request and legal advice received by the Council. Mr. Burke asked that
the committee make a decision on the matter of the wells, rather than defer for new
information to be considered.
Mr Claydon asked that committee consider further historical evidence that the Town
Wells group would provide when the matter was brought before them again in March
2022.
Councillor Fletcher moved that agenda item 9 be brought forward in the agenda,
seconded by Cllr Alcock. The committee voted in favour of this course of action.

Page 45

537

CLITHEROE TOWN WELLS
The Chief Executive submitted a report reminding members that a petition had been
received at Full Council on 12 October 2021 on behalf of the Clitheroe Town Wells
group where it had been requested that three steps be taken, namely
1. To refer the petition to Community Services committee at the next available
opportunity;
2. Consider two possible legal bases for making valid the ownership of the Heald
and St Mary’s wells; and
3. Consider the economic, community, heritage and tourism benefits of adopting
the three wells.
The Head of Legal and Democratic Services informed committee that Council had
resolved to refer the petition to this meeting of Community Services committee for
further consideration as requested.
However, the Council had since been contacted by representatives of the Wells group
who had confirmed that they had compiled further significant historical information
that they would wish to be considered before any decision was made. They had
therefore requested that the matter be deferred to the Community Services committee
in March 2022 to allow sufficient time for consideration and legal advice sought upon
any implications the additional information might have in terms of ownership of the
wells.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
Defer consideration of the petition presented by Clitheroe Town Wells Group to Full
Council on 12 October 2021 until the next meeting of the Community Services
committee.

538

REVISED REVENUE BUDGET 2021/22
The Director of Resources submitted a report asking committee to agree a revised
revenue budget for 2021/22 for this committee.
She reminded committee that at this time of year the estimates are revised for the
current financial year in order to predict the likely outturn on the budget. The budget
this year had been particularly impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic.
Whilst committee income and expenditure may increase or decrease at the revised
estimate, items such as budgeted core government funding and council tax precept
remain fixed. As a result, any compensating movement is within earmarked reserves
and general fund balances. Decisions and actions required as a result of committee
meetings have been incorporated into the budget setting process.
She informed committee that the difference between the revised and original estimate
was an increase in net expenditure of £138,750, or £140,590 after allowing for
movements on earmarked reserves. A number of substantial movements were
summarised for members’ information.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
Approve the revenue revised estimate for 2021/22.

Page 46

539

ORIGINAL REVENUE BUDGET 2022/23
The Director of Resources submitted a report outlining the draft revenue budget for
approval by committee and then consideration at Special Policy and Finance
committee.
The Council’s three-year budget forecast had been presented to Policy and Finance
committee in September 2021 when it predicted that there would be the following
budget gaps: £82k in 2022/23, £139k in 2023/24 and £230k in 2024/25, after allowing
for use of general fund balances.
Since that time there had been a number of significant changes affecting the budget.
These included significant rises in inflation, an increase in national insurance
contributions and implementation of a new pay line. Therefore, the budget gap for
2022/23 was estimated to increase to around £497k.
The provisional local government finance settlement announced in December 2021
was for just one year, with a national increase of 6.9% in Council’s core spending
power in cash terms between 2021/22 and next year. This is the fourth one-year
settlement in a row.
Headlines for Ribble Valley include











Core spending power set to increase by only 0.2% (£11,000) next year from
£6.849m to £6.860m;
Business Rate Baseline funding level is £1.354m which is the same as the
current year, however £111k compensation will be received due to the loss of
income received by freezing the business rate multiplier;
An allocation of Revenue Support Grant (RSG) of £215 despite RSG
increasing nationally by 3.1% for inflation;
Rural Services Delivery Grant of £113,250 – same as the current year;
Lower Tier Services Grant of £60,754 up from £57,696;
A new one off 2022/23 Services Grant has been announced worth £822m in
recognition of services and includes costs of the increase in NI contributions.
Ribble Valley will receive £93,368;
New Homes Bonus (NHB) – the Government have allowed a new round of
NHB allocations for 2022/23 which will not attract any legacy payments. They
have also allowed the one remaining legacy payment of £464k which has
been allowed for. Next year there will be a payment of £741k for 2022/23
along with the legacy payment of £464k = £1.2m;
The Lancashire Business Rate Pool has received designation to continue;
and,
The Council Tax can be increased by £5

Taking these things into account reduces the budget gap from £497k to £233k.
The Director of Resources reminded members that the fees and charges for this
committee had been approved at their last meeting, and the consequential impact
had been incorporated into the service budgets.
Once all committees had approved their detailed estimates, the overall position would
be considered by the Budget Working Group and recommendations in order to
produce a balanced budget would be made to Special Policy and Finance committee,
before being presented to Full Council, at which point the Council Tax for 2022/23
would also be approved.

Page 47

The draft proposed budget for 2022/23 was set out for each service area, built up
over a number of stages including inflation, movements in expenditure, income,
support services and capital, culminating in a draft original estimate.
In the original estimate for 2021/22 it was planned that this committee take £32,430
from earmarked reserves to support its expenditure in future years. It was now
proposed to take £55,330 in 2022/23. The reasons for this were outlined.
The net expenditure for this committee has increased from £4,134,740 by £371,750
to £4,506,490 after allowing for associated movements on earmarked reserves. The
main reasons were summarised for committee’s information.
There had also been 14 requests for growth items totalling £104,640. Committee
were asked which they felt they supported to be put forward for further consideration
by Policy and Finance committee.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
1. Approve the revenue original estimate for 2022/23 and submit this to the
Special Policy and Finance committee, and
2. Support the growth items as set out in the report with the addition of
Apprentice Mechanic at the Depot.
540

REVISED CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2021/22
The Director of Resources submitted a report asking committee to approve the
2021/22 revised estimate for this committee’s capital programme.
Five schemes totalling £1,555,000 had been approved by Special Policy and Finance
committee and full Council in February and March 2021 respectively. This included
three new schemes and two that had been moved from the 2020/21 capital
programme to the 2021/22 capital programme.
During the year there had been several budget changes resulting in a capital
programme of twelve schemes totalling £1,808,900. These had been revised to
reflect their progress and estimated full year expenditure for 2021/22 which resulted
in a proposed revised estimate of £591,360 for twelve schemes, a reduction of
£1,217,540 from the total approved budget. The reasons were highlighted for
committee’s information with the main one being the Installation of a Second Parking
Deck on Chester Avenue Car Park scheme (£1,215,000) being moved to the 2022/23
financial year.
Of the twelve schemes in the proposed revised capital programme:




Two were complete,
Nine were currently expected to be completed in-year (with four being weather
dependent), and
It was unclear whether one scheme would be completed in-year.

Members discussed the Installation of a Second Parking Deck on Chester Avenue
Car Park scheme in detail and agreed the scheme should be renamed Clitheroe
Town Centre Car Park scheme.

Page 48

RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
1. Approve the 2021/22 revised estimate of £591,360 for this committee’s capital
programme as set out, and
2. Approve the transfer of £1,215,000 budget from 2021/22 to 2022/23 for the
Clitheroe Town Centre Car Park scheme.
541

CAPITAL PROGRAMME REVIEW AND NEW BIDS 2022/23 TO 2026/27
The Director of Resources submitted a report asking committee to consider the future
capital programme for this committee following a review of the existing capital
programme with proposed amendments and the submission of new scheme bids.
For this committee there had originally been 23 schemes approved for the financial
years 2022/23 to 2024/25, totalling £1,833,900. Following a review of these schemes
proposed amendments to 9 had been identified, totalling £77,000. These were
outlined for information.
New capital bids had been put forward for 2025/26 and 2026/27. For this committee
there had been 32 new bids including one for 2022/23, totalling £10,580,950. Any
bids going forward would be considered alongside all other committee bids by the
Budget Working Group and Policy and Finance committee.
External funding would be sought wherever possible.
Councillor Berryman was given permission to speak on this item and encouraged
committee to support the provision of decent facilities.
Members particularly supported the bid for the replacement of Ribblesdale Pool, and
acknowledged that officers would be prudent when it came to replacing vehicles.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
1. Confirm the schemes in the existing capital programme;
2. Request £77,000 of additional funding from Policy and Finance committee for
those schemes where estimates have changed; and
3. Approve all the new capital bids as outlined in the report to be forwarded to
Policy and Finance committee to be considered as part of the Overall Capital
Programme.

542

OPEN SPACE USE
The director of Community Services submitted a report seeking a recommendation
from committee for the control of activities on and above the Council’s open space
areas. This included the use of drones, metal detecting and personal trainers running
their own exercise classes on Council land.
Where formal permission is sought for an activity on Council owned land a contract is
issued, with insurance cover and agreement to conditions of use. This is not usually
the case with the activities mentioned, and no provision is made, therefore, to mitigate
or eliminate any impact on other users of the open space, and upon the Council’s
insurance liability.

Page 49

Officers therefore proposed the limited circumstances when these activities would be
acceptable and what would be required for them to be allowed.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
1. Approve the proposals set out in the report with regard to use of drones, metal
detecting and fitness classes on Council owned land; and
2. Delegate authority to the Director of Community Services to prepare and carry
out the relevant consultation upon the above policies.
543

TAAF UPDATE AND DELEGATION
The Director of Community Services submitted a report asking committee to consider
a scheme of delegation for the delivery of the project and commissioning of services
from Together an Active Future (TaAF) funding to facilitate development of the work.
He reminded committee of the background to the TaAF funding and the approach to it
and purpose of it. The objective of the pilots being to change thinking and develop
new ways of working, with sustainability being a requirement.
For Ribble Valley, the themes are Mental Well-being, Rural Impact on Physical
Activity, Schools and how they can help Physical Activity and Creating Connection
Between Partners.
There is a requirement from Sport England that each area has a mechanism by which
funding decisions can be made. It was suggested that the Health and Wellbeing
Partnership, chaired by Cllr Hindle would be a suitable vehicle to provide the
governance for the project. This group would consider the schemes for
commissioning that arise from the consultation work in the Pathfinder and Accelerator
phases of TaAF, with the approval of these decisions being delegated to the Director
of Community Services in consultation with the Chair and Vice Chair of Community
Services committee and reported retrospectively to committee.
Councillor Berryman was given permission to speak on this item.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
Approve the delegation for project commissioning to the Director of Community
Services in consultation with the Chair and Vice Chair of Community Services as
outlined.

544

CAR PARKING UPDATE
The Director of Community Services submitted a report updating members on current
car parking issues and electric charging.
He reminded members that the Car Park working group had received a study
outlining the position with capacity on short stay car parks in Clitheroe Town Centre,
which was close to capacity at peak times.
Possible options had been discussed and a feasibility study carried out on the
provision of a deck on Chester Avenue car park. This had since been discarded as a
suitable site, and another site was now being considered and a feasibility report
prepared.

Page 50

Regarding electric charging points, 14 had been installed on council car parks and
officers were in the process of investigating the introduction of charging points at the
council offices and depot.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
1. Ask officers to continue to investigate how additional parking can be delivered
for Clitheroe, and ask Policy and Finance committee to retain provision in the
capital programme for new parking facilities (although not on the Chester
Avenue site), and
2. Support officers in pursuing the introduction of more charging points in the
council car parks.
545

WASTE MANAGEMENT
The Director of Community Services submitted a report providing members with an
update on recycling performance.
Performance on recycling of paper and cardboard had decreased particularly in the
months either side of the Covid lockdown. Reasons for this were suggested. It was
felt by officers that a new promotion of the paper collection would help reinstate the
levels before Covid.
Members discussed the decline in paper recycling and how it might be increased
again.
Councillor Berryman was given permission to speak on this item and commented
upon the excellent recycling performance of green waste which had increased to 40%
for the first half of 2021/22.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
1. Ask officers to implement a strategy to promote the collection of paper to the
levels before Covid and discourage the disposal of contaminants in the
recycling stream, and
2. Ask officers to implement within the current financial year.

546

TOOTLE HEIGHTS QUARRY TUNNEL, LONGRIDGE
The Director of Community Services submitted a report providing members with some
background information on the Tootle Heights quarry tunnel in Longridge regarding
the maintenance responsibilities for its various parts.
Investigation works were continuing into the state of the tunnel and the necessary
works required to keep it safe.

547

CLITHEROE FOOD FESTIVAL
The Director of Community Services submitted a report providing an update on the
Clitheroe Food Festival and the preparations being made for 2022. This included the
availability of the car park at Clitheroe Auction Market, the use of an event
management company and marketing of the event.

Page 51

548

GENERAL REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY SERVICES
The Director of Community Services submitted a report for information updating
committee on a variety of developments in sports, arts and community development
and performance of the Platform Gallery.

549

REPORTS FROM REPRESENTATIVES ON OUTSIDE BODIES
There were no reports from representatives on outside bodies.

550

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
RESOLVED
That by virtue of the next item of business being exempt information under Paragraph
2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act the press and public be now
excluded from the meeting.

551

ANNEX TO AGENDA ITEM NO 6
There was no need to move into Part 2 as this item was part of agenda item 6 and
had been covered in Part 1 without specific reference to it.

The meeting closed at 8.18 pm
If you have any queries on these minutes please contact the committee clerk, Olwen
Heap 01200 414408 olwen.heap@ribblevalley.gov.uk.

Page 52

Minutes of Personnel
Meeting Date:
Present:

Wednesday, 12 January 2022, starting at 6.30 pm
Councillor S Bibby (Chair)

Councillors:
D O'Rourke
D Peat

S Rainford
R Thompson

In attendance: Chief Executive and Head of Human Resources
552

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies from the meeting were received from Councillors; S Atkinson, R Bennett, M
Hindle and J Schumann.

553

TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
The minutes of the meeting held on 27 October 2021 were approved as a correct
record and signed by the Chairman.

554

DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY, OTHER REGISTRABLE AND
NON-REGISTRABLE INTERESTS
There were no declarations of disclosable pecuniary, other registrable or nonregistrable interests.

555

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
There was no public participation.

556

REPORTS FROM REPRESENTATIVES ON OUTSIDE BODIES
There were no reports from representatives on outside bodies.

557

PAY POLICY - STATEMENT
In accordance with the Localism Act 2011, the Director of Resources submitted a
report reviewing the Council’s Pay Policy Statement.
Members were reminded that to ensure transparency as to how pay and
remuneration was set by the Council, it was a legal requirement for public sector
organisations to publish their Pay Policy Statement on an annual basis.
The Pay Policy Statement sets out the existing approach to the remuneration of all
posts within the Council. It specifies certain mandatory requirements that must be
detailed within the policy. Members were informed that minor corrections would be
made to the Statement before it is submitted for approval at the Council meeting on 1
March 2022.
*** RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE
1. Received the report, and

Page 53

2. Authorise the Chief Executive to submit the Pay Policy Statement for 2022/23
to the Full Council at its meeting on 1 March 2022 for approval.
558

FACILITIES AGREEMENT - ANNUAL REVIEW
Members were updated on the operation of the Union Facilities Agreement over the
last 12 months.

559

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
RESOLVED:
That by virtue of the next item of business being exempt information under Paragraph
1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 the press and public
be now excluded from the meeting.

560

GENERAL STAFFING - UPDATE
The Director of Resources submitted a report informing Members of general staffing
matters since the last committee meeting. The report included information on
appointments and resignations, internal movements, establishment changes, training,
and retirements.
The report noted that:


Three new staff had been appointed between 15 October 2021 and 15
December 2021.



In the same period, there had been 13 leavers one of which was an optional
retirement.

The Head of Human Resources informed members that CMT at their meeting on 12
January 2022 had approved IRRV (Institute of Revenues Rating and Valuation)
qualification training for 4 staff from the Revenue and Benefits Teams.
Members expressed their appreciation of the excellent service the refuse collection
teams had provided to the borough over the festive period.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
1. Note and approve the decisions taken by the Chairman as outlined in the
report;
2. Agree to write letters of thanks to the staff who have left the Council, where
appropriate; and

3. Approve the reinstatement of post number C84 – Principal Communications
Officer on the Establishment as a full-time post.
561

SALARY REVIEW - UPDATE
The Director of Resources submitted a report updating members on the
implementation of the recent pay review.
Members were reminded that at the meeting of the 27 October 2021 Committee
recommended a package of proposals to address recruitment and retention issues be
submitted to the 9 November 2021 Policy and Finance Committee for approval.

Page 54

Those proposals were duly approved at the meeting and latterly agreed with UNISON
following a ballot of members and receipt of national approval.
Since then, work has been ongoing to process the changes to salaries and they will
be implemented in the January pay.
Members were also reminded that the initial remit of the Pay Working Group was to
look at pay in respect of staff who were employed on NJC conditions of service and
did not consider the pay of those on Chief Officer conditions.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
1. Receive the report, and
2. Reconvene the Pay Structure Working Group to review the pay of Chief
Officers.

The meeting closed at 6.45 pm
If you have any queries on these minutes please contact the committee clerk, Mike
Hill mike.hill@ribblevalley.gov.uk.

Page 55

This page is intentionally left blank

Minutes of Health and Housing
Meeting Date:
Present:

Thursday, 13 January 2022, starting at 7.00 pm
Councillor B Holden

Councillors:
J Alcock
I Brown
S Farmer
J Hill

K Fletcher
G Mirfin
R Newmark
R Walsh

In attendance: Chief Executive, Head of Regeneration and Housing and Head of
Financial Services
562

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence from the meeting were received from Councillors S Atkinson,
R Elms, M Hindle, D O’Rourke, J Schumann and R Sherras.

563

TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
The minutes of the meeting held on 28 October 2021 were approved as a correct
record and signed by the Chairman.

564

DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY, OTHER REGISTRABLE AND
NON-REGISTRABLE INTERESTS
There were no declarations of disclosable pecuniary, other registrable or nonregistrable interests.

565

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
There was no public participation.

566

REVISED REVENUE BUDGET 2021/22
The Director of Resources submitted a report asking committee to agree a revised
revenue budget for 2021/22 for this committee.
Committee were reminded that at this time of year the estimates are revised for the
current financial year in order to predict the likely outturn on the budget. The budget
this year had been particularly impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic.
Whilst committee income and expenditure may increase or decrease at the revised
estimate, items such as budgeted core government funding and council tax precept
remain fixed. As a result, any compensating movement is within earmarked reserves
and general fund balances. Decisions and actions required as a result of committee
meetings have been incorporated into the budget setting process.
Committee were informed that the difference between the revised and original
estimate was a decrease in net expenditure of £342,530, or £356,470 after allowing
for movements on earmarked reserves. A detailed summary of the reasons for the
movements was provided for members’ information.

Page 57

RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
Approve the revenue revised estimate for 2021/22 as set out in the report.
567

ORIGINAL REVENUE BUDGET 2022/23
The Director of Resources submitted a report outlining the draft revenue budget for
approval by committee and then consideration at Special Policy and Finance
committee.
The Council’s three-year budget forecast had been presented to Policy and Finance
committee in September 2021 when it predicted that there would be the following
budget gaps: £82k in 2022/23, £139k in 2023/24 and £230k in 2024/25, after allowing
for use of general fund balances.
Since that time there had been a number of significant changes affecting the budget.
These included significant rises in inflation, an increase in national insurance
contributions and implementation of a new pay line. Therefore, the budget gap for
2022/23 was estimated to increase to around £497k.
The provisional local government finance settlement announced in December 2021
was for just one year, with a national increase of 6.9% in Council’s core spending
power in cash terms between 2021/22 and next year. This is the fourth one-year
settlement in a row.
Headlines for Ribble Valley include:











Core spending power set to increase by only 0.2% (£11,000) next year from
£6.849m to £6.860m.
Business Rate Baseline funding level is £1.354m which is the same as the
current year, however £111k compensation will be received due to the loss of
income received by freezing the business rate multiplier.
An allocation of Revenue Support Grant (RSG) of £215 despite RSG
increasing nationally by 3.1% for inflation.
Rural Services Delivery Grant of £113,250 – same as the current year.
Lower Tier Services Grant of £60,754 up from £57,696.
A new one off 2022/23 Services Grant has been announced worth £822m in
recognition of services and includes costs of the increase in NI contributions.
Ribble Valley will receive £93,368.
New Homes Bonus (NHB) – the Government have allowed a new round of
NHB allocations for 2022/23 which will not attract any legacy payments. They
have also allowed the one remaining legacy payment of £464k which has
been allowed for. Next year there will be a payment of £741k for 2022/23
along with the legacy payment of £464k = £1.2m.
The Lancashire Business Rate Pool has received designation to continue.
The Council Tax can be increased by £5.

Taking these things into account reduces the budget gap from £497k to £233k.
Members were reminded that the fees and charges for this committee had been
approved at their last meeting, and the consequential impact had been incorporated
into the service budgets.

Page 58

Once all committees had approved their detailed estimates, the overall position would
be considered by the Budget Working Group and recommendations in order to
produce a balanced budget would be made to Special Policy and Finance committee,
before being presented to Full Council, at which point the Council Tax for 2022/23
would also be approved.
The draft proposed budget for 2022/23 was set out for each service area, built up
over a number of stages including inflation, movements in expenditure, income,
support services and capital, culminating in a draft original estimate.
In the original estimate for 2021/22 it was planned that this committee add £42,320 to
earmarked reserves to support its expenditure in future years. It was now proposed to
take £500 in 2022/23. The reason for this was outlined.
The net expenditure for this committee has increased from £1,095,450 by £50,230 to
£1,145,680 after allowing for associated movements on earmarked reserves. The
main reasons were summarised for committee’s information.
There had also been two requests for growth items totalling £273,190. Committee
were asked which they supported to be put forward for further consideration by Policy
and Finance committee.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
1. Approve the revenue original estimate for 2022/23 as set out in the report to
be submitted to Special Policy and Finance committee, and
2. Support the following growth items
 Alternative System for Dog Waste/Litter Bin Emptying – staff costs, fuel
costs and vehicle maintenance costs - £258,190.
 Joiners Arms Standard Fittings for Hostel Flats – furniture and fitting
costs and lost rent income - £15,000.
568

REVISED CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2021/22
The Director of Resources submitted a report asking committee to approve the
2021/22 revised estimate for this committee’s capital programme.
Five capital schemes totalling £639,640 had been approved by Special Policy and
Finance committee and full Council in February and March 2021 respectively. This
included four new schemes and two that had been moved from the 2020/21 capital
programme to the 2021/22 capital programme.
During the year there had been several budget changes resulting in a capital
programme of eight schemes totalling £1,336,560. These had now been revised to
reflect their progress and estimated full year expenditure for 2021/22 which resulted
in a proposed revised estimate of £1,049,100, a reduction of £287,460 from the total
approved budget. The reasons were highlighted for committee’s information.
Of the four schemes in the proposed revised capital programme:



Two were currently expected to be completed in-year (although one must wait
for the completion of the other before work can commence), and
The other two were ongoing grants schemes.

Page 59

RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
1. Approve the 2021/22 revised estimate of £1,049,100 for this committee’s
capital programme;
2. Approve the transfer of the following capital budgets from 202/22 to 2022/23:
 Landlord/tenant grants - £186,740
 Clitheroe Market Improvements - £78,600
 Replacement of Pest Control Van PK13 FJP - £13,800
 Replacement of Dog Warden Van PE64 EYC - £13,500
 Joiners Arms Roof Renewal - £42,200
3. Recommend to Policy and Finance committee the approval of additional
budgets on the following capital schemes in 2022/23, subject to additional
funding being identified:
 Replacement of Pest Control Van PK13 FJP - £2,200
 Replacement of Dog Warden Van PE64 EYC - £2,500
569

CAPITAL PROGRAMME REVIEW AND NEW BIDS 2022/23 TO 2026/27
The Director of Resources submitted a report asking committee to consider the future
capital programme for this committee following a review of the existing capital
programme with proposed amendments and the submission of new scheme bids.
For this committee there had originally been three schemes approved for the financial
years 2022/23 to 2024/25, totalling £1,259,700. Following a review of these schemes
an amendment was proposed to the Disabled Facilities Grants, totalling £138,000
over three years. This on-going grant scheme is included as an indicative value on
the understanding that the actual scheme budget for each year would be set to match
the actual Central Government grant funding received in that year. This equates to a
£46,000 increase each year for 2022/23, 2023/24 and 2024/25 respectively.
New capital bids had been requested to be put forward for 2025/26 and 2026/27. For
this committee there had been six new bids including one for 2022/23, totalling
£2,170,740. Any bids supported by committee would be considered alongside bids
from all other committee by the Budget Working Group and Policy and Finance
committee.
Members were reminded of the additional revenue impact that new capital schemes
would commit the council to, in particular the Alternative System for Dog Waste/Litter
Bins Emptying scheme, which had recurring annual revenue costs of £258,190.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
1. Confirm the schemes in the previously approved capital programme;
2. Request £138,000 of additional budget from Policy and Finance committee for
the changed estimates on the Disabled Facilities Grants scheme between
2022/23 and 2024/25. This proposed increased budget is on the basis that it is
fully financed by Central Government Disabled Facilities Grants finding each
year; and
3. Approve all the new capital bids and consequential additional revenue cost for
2022/23, 2025/26 and 2026/27 to be forwarded to Policy and Finance
committee to be considered as part of the Overall Capital Programme.

Page 60

570

APPOINTMENT OF LOCAL AUTHORITY PROPER OFFICERS
The Chief Executive submitted a report advising committee of the transfer of health
protection roles and responsibilities from Public Health England to the UK Health
Security Agency (UKHSA) with effect from 1 October 2021.
He also asked for committee’s approval of an amendment of the scheme of
delegation regarding the appointment of ‘proper officers’ for the purpose of the Health
Protection (Notification) Regulations 2010 (“the Regulations”).
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
Approve the authorisation of Consultants in Health Protection/Consultants in
Communicable Disease Control employed by the UKHSA Northwest for the duties
stated in the report to act on behalf of Ribble Valley Borough Council.

571

HOMELESSNESS - OVERVIEW
The Director of Economic Development and Planning submitted a report providing
committee with a general update and overview on all the various grant awards
available to the housing needs service. Endorsement was also sought for the
continuation of a joint management approach of the Longridge unit of temporary
accommodation at 23 Wellbrow Drive through a Licence Agreement.
The Agreement ensures all maintenance issues are still the responsibility of Onward
but all rent is paid direct from Ribble Valley Borough Council and therefore any void
costs must be covered by the homeless service budget. The unit is essential for
addressing temporary accommodation demand in Longridge and demands are such
that voids are minimal.
The report outlined the various sources of grant funding available to the Council to
address homelessness issues. These included:






Homeless Prevention Grant Winter Exceptional Top Up Allocation 21/22
Accommodation for Offenders – MHCLG Grant
Homeless Prevention Grant 20/21
Rough Sleeping Initiative 20/21
Protect and Vaccinate 2021/22 allocations

RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
1. Approve the continued use of 23 Wellbrow Drive, Longridge under a Licence
Agreement;
2. Agree a total budget for the property as per Appendix 1 to recommend to next
Policy and Finance committee; and

3. Note the various grant schemes available along with their limitations in terms
of usage.
572

REPORTS FROM REPRESENTATIVES ON OUTSIDE BODIES
There were no reports from representatives on outside bodies.

Page 61

573

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
RESOLVED: That by virtue of the next item of business being exempt information
under Paragraph 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 the
press and public be now excluded from the meeting.

574

GRANTS - UPDATE
The Director of Economic Development and Planning submitted a report informing
members of the recent approvals for Disabled Facilities Grants and Landlord Tenant
Grants.
It was noted that no new Landlord/Tenant grants had been approved since the last
Committee report and that a review of the grant scheme is being undertaken and will
be the subject of a future report to this Committee.

The meeting closed at 19:00
If you have any queries on these minutes please contact the committee clerk,
olwen.heap@ribblevalley.gov.uk.

Page 62

Minutes of Policy and Finance
Meeting Date:
Present:

Tuesday, 18 January 2022, starting at 6.30 pm
Councillor S Atkinson (Chair)

Councillors:
D Berryman
S Bibby
A Brown
J Clark
S Fletcher

G Hibbert
J Hill
M Hindle
S Hirst
D Peat

In attendance: Chief Executive and Director of Resources
Also in attendance: Councillor G Mirfin
575

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence from the meeting were received from Councillors M French, S
Hore, K Horkin and R Thompson.

576

TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING AND THE
EMERGENCY COMMITTEE
The minutes of the meeting held on 9 November 2021 and Emergency committees
held on 29 November 2021 and 10 December 2021 were approved as a correct
record and signed by the Chairman.

577

DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY, OTHER REGISTRABLE AND
NON-REGISTRABLE INTERESTS
There were no declarations of disclosable pecuniary, other registrable or nonregistrable interests.

578

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
There was no public participation.

579

REVISED REVENUE BUDGET 2021/22
The Director of Resources submitted a report asking committee to agree a revised
revenue budget for 2021/22 for this committee.
She reminded committee that at this time of year the estimates are revised for the
current financial year in order to predict the likely outturn on the budget. The budget
this year had again been particularly impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic.
Whilst committee income and expenditure may increase or decrease at the revised
estimate, items such as budgeted core government funding and council tax precept
remain fixed. As a result, any compensating movement is within earmarked reserves
and general fund balances. Decisions and actions required as a result of committee
meetings have been incorporated into the budget setting process.
Within this committee there were budget movements across two areas. Those within
original estimate budgets that have been established to support service activities and

Page 63

those resulting from the coronavirus pandemic response for which there is no original
base budget estimate for 2021/22. A detailed breakdown was provided.
She informed committee that the total difference between the revised and original
estimate was a decrease in net expenditure of £81,290, or an increase in net
expenditure of £55,890 after allowing for movements on earmarked reserves. The
balance on coronavirus specific budgets was nil after movements in reserves. A
detailed summary of the reasons for movements were summarised for members’
information.
For this committee there were a number of large variations. The largest was as a
result of vacant posts within the Chief Executives Department.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
Agree the revenue revised estimate for 2021/22.
580

REVISED CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2021/22
The Director of Resources submitted a report asking committee to approve the
2021/22 revised estimate for this committee’s capital programme.
Four schemes totalling £105,510 had been approved by Special Policy and Finance
committee and full Council in February and March 2021 respectively. All four
schemes had been moved from the 2020/21 capital programme to the 2021/22 capital
programme.
During the year there had been several budget changes resulting in a capital
programme of eight schemes totalling £179,790. These had been revised to reflect
their progress and estimated full year expenditure for 2021/22 which resulted in a
proposed revised estimate of £70,910 for five schemes, a reduction of £108,880 from
the total approved budget. The reasons were highlighted for committee’s information.
Of the five schemes in the proposed revised capital programme:




One was complete,
Two were currently expected to be completed in-year, and
It was unclear whether the other two schemes would be completed in-year.

RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
1. Approve the 2021/22 revised estimate of £70,910 for this committee’s capital
programme as set out in the report, and
2. Approve the transfer of the following capital budgets from 2021/22 to 2022/23





Dewhurst Road, Langho – Resurfacing works - £62,850
Network Infrastructure - £30,000
Committee Administration IT System - £7,600
Financial system upgrade - £8,430

3. Agree to move the Special Policy and Finance committee to 15 February 2022
to allow officers and budget working group time to manage the budget
process.

Page 64

581

CAPITAL PROGRAMME REVIEW AND NEW BIDS
The Director of Resources submitted a report asking committee to consider the future
capital programme for this committee following a review of the existing capital
programme and the submission of new scheme bids.
For this committee there had originally been eight schemes approved for the financial
years 2022/23 to 2024/25, totalling £432,880. Following a review of these schemes
there were no proposed amendments identified.
New capital bids had been put forward for 2025/26 and 2026/27. For this committee
there had been six new bids totalling £415,100 including a joint bid from the Legal,
Planning and Environmental Health departments for a software upgrade for regulatory
services. Any bids going forward would be considered alongside all other committee
bids by the Budget Working Group and Policy and Finance committee.
Members expressed some concern about bids for 2025/26 that appeared urgent and
may need completing before then.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
1. Confirm the schemes in the currently approved capital programme, and
2. Approve all the new capital bids for 2025/26 and 2026/27 to Special Policy
and Finance committee to be considered alongside the bids from all
committees as part of the Overall Capital Programme.

582

CORPORATE DEBT POLICY
The Director of Resources submitted a report asking committee to agree a new
updated Corporate Debt Policy.
She explained that having a Corporate Debt Policy was good practice and ensures
that all people involved in the collection of money owed to the Council have a
consistent approach and understanding of procedures. The Policy was circulated for
members to consider.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
Approve the Corporate Debt Policy attached to the report.

583

LOCAL COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SCHEME 2022/23
The Director of Resources submitted a report updating committee on the consultation
exercise that had been conducted regarding changes proposed to the Local Council
Tax Support (LCTS) scheme and asking them to consider next steps regarding
potential changes to the scheme in time for the 2022/23 financial year.
She reminded committee that the LCTS scheme had replaced Council Tax Benefit in
2013/14 and was now paid as a discount against an individual’s council tax bill rather
than a benefit. The Government had replaced the subsidy with a grant payable to
Councils for the cost of LCTS, however they had reduced the amount from 100% to
90% and councils had either to absorb the reduction or meet it from reductions in
council tax or elsewhere from within the council tax system.
Councils had been required to design their own LCTS system and consult with their
residents and major preceptors regarding their proposals. At the start of the scheme

Page 65

we proposed to use £120k of council tax income raised on second homes to partially
offset the shortfall and proposed the balance would be met by reducing the discount
on second homes and applying a 12% reduction to working age claimants. However,
the Government offered a one off transition grant if councils capped their reduction at
8.5% which we did for the first year in 2013/24 and thereafter raised it to 12%.
The Director of Resources informed committee that currently across Lancashire there
were many varying levels of reductions with two local authorities currently having no
reduction in support at all.
At the March 2021 Full Council meeting as part of the budget deliberations, it was
considered that a piece of work should be carried out to explore the possibility of
removing the 12% reduction in support for working age claimants. The budget
working group had considered this and recommended to this committee that the
Council launch a consultation exercise to remove the 12% reduction thereby
increasing support to these claimants.
The consultation exercise had run from 25 October to 5 December 2021 as an online
survey with paper copies available.
All major preceptors had raised concerns about the proposed change and the impact
it would have on the income they received. However, 91% of the 58 responses
received to the online survey agreed that the 12% reduction should be removed.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
Agree to alter that LCTS scheme for 2022/23 and remove the 12% reduction applied
to working age claimants to bring them into line with pensioner age claimants.
(Councillor S Hirst left the meeting)
584

COVID-19 ADDITIONAL RELIEF FUND (CARF)
The Director of Resources submitted a report updating committee on the Covid 19
Additional Relief Fund (CARF) that was announced by the Chancellor on 21
December 2021.
She explained that liability for business rates is based upon the rateable value of a
property set by the Valuation Office Agency (VOA) which are updated at revaluations.
The next revaluation is planned for 1 April 2023 with a valuation date of 1 April 2021.
In between revaluations, rateable values can only be changed to reflect ‘material
changes of circumstances’. Since the start of the pandemic the VOA had received
many checks arguing that interventions concerning the use of property were a
material change, which if successful, would have a major impact on the level of
rateable values. The Government therefore introduced primary legislation with
retrospective effect clarifying that coronavirus was not an appropriate use of the
material change of circumstances provision. The Rating (Coronavirus) and Directors
Disqualification (Dissolved Companies) Bill received Royal assent on 15 December
2021.
In March 2021 the Government had announced a new Covid 19 Additional Relief
Fund (CARF) of £1.5 billion intended to support businesses affected by the pandemic
that are ineligible for the existing support linked to business rates. Guidance had been
issued to local authorities detailing how the scheme should operate. Ribble Valley
Borough Council had been allocated £1,239,191.

Page 66

The Director of Resources informed committee that the guidance stated that billing
authorities were responsible for designing a discretionary relief scheme in their area
that would be granted using powers contained in Section 47(8A) of the Local
Government Finance Act 1988. The scheme must not award relief to ratepayers who
have received Expanded Retail Discount or Nursery Discount. It was also for local
authorities to determine how much relief should be awarded to each eligible business
subject to subsidy control rules detailed in the guidance.
She informed members that a meeting of the Lancashire Revenues Managers had
taken place on 11 January 2022 to discuss the issues regarding the scheme and
share ideas.
As it was difficult to estimate the level of demand, it was suggested that applications
from businesses that meet the eligibility criteria be invited for a set period up to 28
February 2022, and then determine the level of relief to award each category of
property based on the applications received.
Councillor Mirfin was given permission to speak on this item.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
Endorse the suggested approach and invite applications from businesses who meet
the eligibility criteria as set out in the guidance, with a view to another report coming
to the next meeting to determine the level of relief to be awarded.
585

COVID-19 BUSINESS GRANTS
The Director of Resources submitted a report updating members on the existing
Additional Restrictions Grant (ARG) scheme, the recent announcement made by the
Chancellor on 21 December 2021 in response to the Omicron variant regarding
further business support and asking them to consider a new strand to the ARG
scheme for the Omicron variant.
She reminded members that the Council currently had three live ARG grant schemes
which were agreed by this committee in November 2021 – travel agents, business
recovery and business growth. Since the last meeting there had been 66 applications
received of which 17 had been approved and 5 rejected. The approvals totalled
£120k and unallocated funds were currently £426k.
On 21 December 2021 the Chancellor had announced two further funding streams for
businesses severely affected by the Omicron variant



Omicron Hospitality and Leisure Grant (OHLG): businesses in the hospitality
and leisure sectors in England will be eligible for one-off grants of up to £6,000
per premises.
A third top up to local authorities ARG funding to support businesses who had
been severely impacted by the Omicron variant including those outside the
business rate system.

The Government had issued guidance for local authorities to administer the OHLG
scheme on their behalf, with the allocation to Ribble Valley being £1,056,078. Any
eligible grants paid out that exceed this will be reimbursed by the Government. The
Director of Resources outlined who would be eligible, the value of the grant,
exclusions to the grant, and closure date for applications. An on-line application form
had been designed.

Page 67

Regarding the ARG top-up, it had been made clear that it should only be allocated
directly to businesses that had been severely impacted by the Omicron variant and
should not fund wider business support measures.
The allocation to Ribble Valley was £146,048 and it was suggested that grants should
be £1000 for businesses with a rateable value and £500 for those not registered for
business rates.
Councillor G Mirfin was given permission to speak on this item.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
1. Note the progress with the existing ARG scheme;
2. Note and welcome the new OHLG scheme; and
3. Agree the grant amounts of £1,000 for businesses with a rateable value and
£500 for those not registered for business rates for the new Omicron ARG
scheme, and delegate the creation of a detailed scheme to the Director of
Resources in consultation with the ARG task and finish group.
586

REFERENCES FROM COMMITTEES - IF ANY
There were no references from committees.

587

QUEEN'S PLATINUM JUBILEE
The Chief Executive submitted a report for information updating members on the
progress with the selection of appropriate projects to commemorate the Queen’s
Platinum Jubilee.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
1. Note the progress being made, and
2. Agree to delegate to the Chief Executive in consultation with the Platinum
Jubilee working group to progress the purchase of a piece of land for a
woodland.

588

REVENUES AND BENEFITS GENERAL REPORT
The Director of Resources submitted a report for information on debts outstanding for
business rates, council tax and sundry debtors. It also updated members on benefits
performance, including benefits processing times and overpayment recovery.

589

TREASURY MANAGEMENT MONITORING 2021/22
The Director of Resources submitted a monitoring report for information on the
treasury management activities for the period 1 April 2021 to 31 December 2021. This
included temporary investments, interest on investments, local government bonds
agency, borrowing, borrowing requirements, prudential indicators, approved
organisations, recent events and exposure to risk.

590

MINUTES OF BUDGET WORKING GROUP 18 AUGUST 2021
The minutes of the Budget working group meeting held on 18 August 2021 were
submitted for committee’s information.

Page 68

591

MINUTES OF JOINT WORKING GROUP - CLIMATE CHANGE AND LOCAL
DEVELOPMENT PLAN
The minutes of the Joint Climate Change / Development Plan working group meeting
held on 29 November 2021 were submitted for committee’s information.

592

REPORTS FROM REPRESENTATIVES ON OUTSIDE BODIES
There were no reports from representatives on outside bodies.

593

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
RESOLVED: That by virtue of the next item of business being exempt information
under Paragraph 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 the
press and public be now excluded from the meeting.

594

ORIGINAL REVENUE BUDGET 2022/23
The Director of Resources submitted a report outlining the draft revenue budget for
approval by committee and then consideration at Special Policy and Finance
committee.
The Council’s three-year budget forecast had been presented to Policy and Finance
committee in September 2021 when it predicted that there would be the following
budget gaps: £82k in 2022/23, £139k in 2023/24 and £230k in 2024/25, after allowing
for use of general fund balances.
Since that time there had been a number of significant changes affecting the budget.
These included significant rises in inflation, an increase in national insurance
contributions and implementation of a new pay line. Therefore, the budget gap for
2022/23 was estimated to increase to around £497k.
The provisional local government finance settlement announced in December 2021
was for just one year, with a national increase of 6.9% in Council’s core spending
power in cash terms between 2021/22 and next year. This is the fourth one-year
settlement in a row.
Headlines for Ribble Valley include








Core spending power set to increase by only 0.2% (£11,000) next year from
£6.849m to £6.860m;
Business Rate Baseline funding level is £1.354m which is the same as the
current year, however £111k compensation will be received due to the loss of
income received by freezing the business rate multiplier;
An allocation of Revenue Support Grant (RSG) of £215 despite RSG
increasing nationally by 3.1% for inflation;
Rural Services Delivery Grant of £113,250 – same as the current year;
Lower Tier Services Grant of £60,754 up from £57,696;
A new one off 2022/23 Services Grant has been announced worth £822m in
recognition of services and includes costs of the increase in NI contributions.
Ribble Valley will receive £93,368;
New Homes Bonus (NHB) – the Government have allowed a new round of
NHB allocations for 2022/23 which will not attract any legacy payments. They
have also allowed the one remaining legacy payment of £464k which has

Page 69




been allowed for. Next year there will be a payment of £741k for 2022/23
along with the legacy payment of £464k = £1.2m;
The Lancashire Business Rate Pool has received designation to continue;
and,
The Council Tax can be increased by £5

Taking these things into account reduces the budget gap from £497k to £233k.
The Director of Resources reminded members that the fees and charges for this
committee had been approved at their last meeting, and the consequential impact
had been incorporated into the service budgets.
Once all committees had approved their detailed estimates, the overall position would
be considered by the Budget Working Group and recommendations in order to
produce a balanced budget would be made to Special Policy and Finance committee,
before being presented to Full Council, at which point the Council Tax for 2022/23
would also be approved.
The draft proposed budget for 2022/23 was set out for each service area, built up
over a number of stages including inflation, movements in expenditure, income,
support services and capital, culminating in a draft original estimate.
In the original estimate for 2021/22 it was planned that this committee add £24,100 to
earmarked reserves to support its expenditure in future years. It was now proposed to
add £23,220 in 2022/23. The reasons for this were outlined.
The net expenditure for this committee has increased by £157,970 after allowing for
associated movements on earmarked reserves. The main reasons were summarised
for committee’s information.
There had also been 10 requests for growth items totalling £205,440. Committee
were asked which they felt they supported to be put forward for further consideration
by Special Policy and Finance committee.
Members discussed the proposed additions/changes to staff posts in some detail and
asked that their views be taken into account by the Budget working group when they
were considering the budget prior to Special Policy and Finance committee.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
1. Approve the revenue original estimate for 2022/23 and submit it to Special
Policy and Finance committee, and
2. Approve the requests submitted for growth items for consideration by Special
Policy and Finance committee taking into account the views of committee.
595

ANNEX TO AGENDA ITEM 6 - ORIGINAL REVENUE BUDGET 2022/23
These items were considered under the previous item – Original Revenue Budget
2022/23.

The meeting closed at 8.22 pm
If you have any queries on these minutes please contact the committee clerk, Olwen
Heap olwen.heap@ribblevalley.gov.uk.

Page 70

Minutes of Economic Development
Meeting Date:
Present:

Thursday, 20 January 2022, starting at 6.30 pm
Councillor S Hirst (Chair)

Councillors:
D Berryman
D Birtwhistle
B Buller
J Clark
L Edge
R Elms

S Farmer
S Fletcher
M French
G Mirfin
R Thompson

In attendance: Director of Economic Development and Planning and Head of Leisure
and Cultural Services
Not in attendance: Councillor S Carefoot
596

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors R Bennett and S Hore.

597

DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY, OTHER REGISTRABLE AND
NON-REGISTRABLE INTERESTS
Councillor G Mirfin declared that as a County Councillors he sits on LCDL which owns
land in Ribble Valley.

598

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
There was no public participation.

599

TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
The minutes of the meeting held on 4 November 2021 were approved as a correct
record and signed by the Chairman.

600

REVISED REVENUE BUDGET 2021/22
The Director of Resources submitted a report asking committee to agree a revised
revenue budget for 2021/22 for this committee.
Committee were reminded that at this time of year the estimates are revised for the
current financial year in order to predict the likely outturn on the budget. The budget
this year had been particularly impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic.
Whilst committee income and expenditure may increase or decrease at the revised
estimate, items such as budgeted core government funding and council tax precept
remain fixed. As a result, any compensating movement is within earmarked reserves
and general fund balances. Decisions and actions required as a result of committee
meetings have been incorporated into the budget setting process.
Committee were informed that the difference between the revised and original
estimate was a decrease in net expenditure of £20,330, or £33,150 after allowing for

Page 71

movements on earmarked reserves. A summary of the reasons for the movements
was provided for members’ information.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
Agree the revenue revised estimate for 2021/22.
601

ORIGINAL REVENUE BUDGET 2022/23
The Director of Resources submitted a report outlining the draft revenue budget for
approval by committee and then consideration at Special Policy and Finance
committee.
The Council’s three-year budget forecast had been presented to Policy and Finance
committee in September 2021 when it predicted that there would be the following
budget gaps: £82k in 2022/23, £139k in 2023/24 and £230k in 2024/25, after allowing
for use of general fund balances.
Since that time there had been a number of significant changes affecting the budget.
These included significant rises in inflation, an increase in national insurance
contributions and implementation of a new pay line. Therefore, the budget gap for
2022/23 was estimated to increase to around £497k.
The provisional local government finance settlement announced in December 2021
was for just one year, with a national increase of 6.9% in Council’s core spending
power in cash terms between 2021/22 and next year. This is the fourth one-year
settlement in a row.
Headlines for Ribble Valley include:











Core spending power set to increase by only 0.2% (£11,000) next year from
£6.849m to £6.860m.
Business Rate Baseline funding level is £1.354m which is the same as the
current year, however £111k compensation will be received due to the loss of
income received by freezing the business rate multiplier.
An allocation of Revenue Support Grant (RSG) of £215 despite RSG
increasing nationally by 3.1% for inflation.
Rural Services Delivery Grant of £113,250 – same as the current year.
Lower Tier Services Grant of £60,754 up from £57,696.
A new one off 2022/23 Services Grant has been announced worth £822m in
recognition of services and includes costs of the increase in NI contributions.
Ribble Valley will receive £93,368.
New Homes Bonus (NHB) – the Government have allowed a new round of
NHB allocations for 2022/23 which will not attract any legacy payments. They
have also allowed the one remaining legacy payment of £464k which has
been allowed for. Next year there will be a payment of £741k for 2022/23
along with the legacy payment of £464k = £1.2m.
The Lancashire Business Rate Pool has received designation to continue.
The Council Tax can be increased by £5.

Taking these things into account reduces the budget gap from £487k to £233k.
Members were reminded that the fees and charges for this committee had been
approved at their last meeting, and the consequential impact had been incorporated
into the service budgets.

Page 72

Once all committees had approved their detailed estimates, the overall position would
be considered by the Budget Working Group and recommendations in order to
produce a balanced budget would be made to Special Policy and Finance committee,
before being presented to Full Council, at which point the Council Tax for 2022/23
would also be approved.
The draft proposed budget for 2022/23 was set out for each service area, starting with
the original estimate for the current year and the predicted changes including inflation,
movements in expenditure, income, support services and capital charges.
The net expenditure for this committee had increased by £43,840. The main reasons
were summarised for committee’s information.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
Approve the revenue original estimate for 2022/23 for submission to Special Policy
and Finance committee.
602

REVISED CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2021/22
The Director of Resources submitted a report asking committee to approve the
2021/22 revised estimate for this committee’s capital programme.
One capital scheme totalling £66,750 had been approved by Special Policy and
Finance committee and full Council in February and March 2021 respectively. The
scheme had been moved from the 2020/21 capital programme to the 2021/22 capital
programme.
During the year there had been budget changes resulting in a capital programme of
two schemes totalling £101,750. These had now been revised to reflect their progress
and estimated full year expenditure for 2021/22 which resulted in a proposed revised
estimate of £50,000, a reduction of £51,750 from the total approved budget. The
reasons were highlighted for committee’s information.
Progress was reported on the two schemes. Lancashire County Council has informed
us that the gateway signs would be installed over the next 4 – 6 weeks.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
1. Approve the 2021/22 revised estimate of £50,000 for this committee’s capital
programme as set out, and
2. Approve the transfer of £51,750 of the Economic Development Initiatives
capital budget from 2021/22 to 2022/23.

603

CAPITAL PROGRAMME REVIEW AND NEW BIDS
The Director of Resources submitted a report asking committee to consider the future
capital programme for this committee following a review of the existing capital
programme with proposed amendments and the submission of a new scheme bid.
For this committee, no capital schemes were previously approved for the financial
years 2022/23 to 2024/25, so no scheme reviews had been required.
New capital bids had been requested to be put forward for 2025/26 and 2026/27. For
this committee there was one new bid for 2025/26 for £55,000 for the Clitheroe
Townscape scheme which had been deleted from the capital programme in February

Page 73

2018. If the bid was supported by committee, it would be considered alongside bids
from all other committee by the Budget Working Group and Policy and Finance
committee.
The Chairman informed committee that a request for additional match funding on this
scheme may be made by Lancashire County Council and suggested that should the
detail be received in time for the budget process, it also be considered.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
1. Approve the new capital bid for 2025/26 for the Clitheroe Townscape scheme
and forward it to Policy and Finance committee to be considered alongside the
bids from all committees as part of the Overall Capital Programme.

2. Consider a further request for additional match funding on this scheme when
details are received from LCC.

604

FEEDBACK ON LONGRIDGE LEVELLING UP BID
The Director of Economic Development and Planning submitted a report updating
members on our bid to the Levelling Up Fund.
She reminded committee of the background to the bid and the decision to submit a
bid for Longridge Town Centre under the Regeneration and town centre investment
theme of the fund. This application had been considered by a central appraisal team
and feedback had been received. The bid submitted was a reasonably strong bid in a
highly competitive and oversubscribed application process. It had scored well in
respect of its strategic fit and value for money, however the weakest area was that of
deliverability. Specific feedback with regards to this area had been provided.
There was currently no more information on the Levelling Up Fund other than that
there would be another round in Spring 2022.Committee would be kept informed.

605

TOURISM UPDATE
The Director of Community Services submitted a report for information on the general
progress on tourism activity, with particular reference to measures taken to support
the visitor economy during the pandemic, as well as the priorities as we continue
through recovery.
Members requested officers to look at installing electric charging points on Council
rural car parks and Longridge, and to consider extending our promotional offering to
include cycling and golf.

606

REPORTS FROM REPRESENTATIVES ON OUTSIDE BODIES
There were no reports from representatives on outside bodies.

607

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
There were no items under this heading.
The meeting closed at 6.57 pm
If you have any queries on these minutes please contact the committee clerk, Olwen
Heap olwen.heap@ribblevalley.gov.uk.

Page 74

Minutes of Emergency
Meeting Date:
Present:

Tuesday, 25 January 2022, starting at 6.00 pm
Councillor S Atkinson

Councillors:
A Brown

S Hore
S Fletcher

In attendance: Director of Community Services, Director of Economic Development
and Planning, Director of Resources and Chief Executive
Also in attendance: Councillors L Edge, S Hirst and D Peat
608

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
There were no apologies for absence.

609

DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY, OTHER REGISTRABLE OR
NON-REGISTRABLE INTERESTS
There were no declarations of disclosable pecuniary, other registrable or nonregistrable interests.

610

PROPOSED CHANGES TO COMMITTEE DATES
The Chief Executive informed committee that following a meeting of the last Budget
Working Group it was felt that more time was required to consider the upcoming
budget and it would be helpful if the date of Special Policy and Finance committee
could be put back.
The meeting of Policy and Finance Committee held on 18 January had therefore
agreed to change the special meeting from 8 February 2022 to 15 February 2022.
However, since that meeting it was realised this new date coincided with half term
holidays and it was still felt more time was needed to consider the budget. With a
meeting date of 22 February 2022, it would be necessary to put back the meeting of
Full Council scheduled for 1 March 2022 to 8 March 2022. This would have a knockon effect on the date of Community Services committee for which it was proposed
moving by one day to 9 March 2022. Members were in favour of the new dates
suggested
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
Agree to alter the following meeting dates to allow time for further consideration of the
future budget




611

Special Policy and Finance committee to 22 February 2022
Council to 8 March 2022
Community Services committee to 9 March 2022

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
There were no items under this heading.

Page 75

The meeting closed at 6.04 pm
If you have any queries on these minutes please contact the committee clerk, Olwen
Heap .

Page 76

Minutes of Council
Meeting Date:
Present:

Tuesday, 25 January 2022, starting at 6.30 pm
Councillor T Austin (Chair)

Councillors:
J Alcock
S Atkinson
R Bennett
D Berryman
S Bibby
D Birtwhistle
A Brown
I Brown
S Brunskill
B Buller
S Carefoot
J Clark
L Edge
S Farmer
S Fletcher
M French
J Hill

M Hindle
S Hirst
B Holden
S Hore
K Horkin
G Mirfin
R Newmark
D O'Rourke
S O'Rourke
D Peat
S Rainford
J Rogerson
J Schumann
G Scott
R Thompson
R Walsh

In attendance: Chief Executive, Director of Community Services, Director of
Economic Development and Planning, Director of Resources, Head of Legal and
Democratic Services and Head of HR
612

MINUTE SILENCE
The meeting began with a minute’s silence in memory of David Robinson, husband of
Councillor Mary Robinson and former Consort, who had recently died. Members
passed on their condolences and best wishes to Councillor Robinson.

613

PRAYERS
The Mayor’s Chaplain, Rev Swindells opened the meeting with prayers.

614

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence from the meeting were received on behalf of Councillors R
Elms, A Humphreys, M Robinson and R Sherras

615

DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY, OTHER REGISTRABLE AND
NON-REGISTRABLE INTERESTS
Councillor Mirfin declared an interest in respect of his role as a Lancashire County
Councillor in relation to the item on the agenda concerning Our New Deal for
Lancashire. Councillor Horkin declared an interest in respect of ownership of
properties and businesses in the Ribble Valley.

616

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION SESSION
There was no public participation.

Page 77

617

TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
The minutes of the meeting held on 12 October 2021 were approved as a correct
record and signed by the Chairman.

618

MAYORAL COMMUNICATIONS
The Mayor began by thanking everyone for their good wishes whilst he had been
incapacitated before Christmas and thanked the Deputy Mayor for standing in at
various events.
Next, he reported that he had been delighted to be presented to the Duke and
Duchess of Cambridge during their recent visit to Clitheroe Community Hospital and
noted that the Duke had asked the Chief Executive to pass on his thanks to staff for
all that they had done during the pandemic.
The Mayor highlighted a number of events that he or the Deputy Mayor had attended
since the last meeting, including events to commemorate Remembrance Sunday, a
Charity Luncheon in November and a tour of the Main Offices on Christmas Jumper
Day. The Mayor was grateful to the response of staff on the day and the funds that
had been raised to support his charity through the event.

619

LEADER'S REPORT
The Leader began by highlighting the ongoing work of the Council in helping to
provide support and advice in response to the Covid pandemic. He was proud of how
the Council had risen to the challenge of Covid and how it had continued to deliver
services throughout, despite significant staff shortages. He thanked staff for their
commitment and efforts in maintaining key services.
The Leader confirmed that the Council was also now delivering the Household
Support Fund to help the most financially vulnerable residents in the borough.
£90,000 of key funding was available and it would make a real difference to those
residents.
He reminded Members that the Council had agreed at last year’s budget to remove
the 12% reduction applied to working age claimants Council Tax support. This would
commence from the new financial year and eligible residents would share £148,000 in
additional support for each financial year.
The Leader went on to report on the decision taken by Personnel Committee and
approved by Policy and Finance Committee to increase pay for all Council workers
below Director level, to help build capacity and address recruitment and retention
difficulties. He confirmed that the Pay Review Group would be meeting to review
Director pay in the near future.
The changes to the pay line, as agreed, would be funded from the Council’s reserves
and would amount to an additional costs of £2,000,000 over the next 5 years.
He noted that potential changes to income streams in the future meant that budget
decisions for this year would be particularly challenging.
Next the Leader reported that a meeting had been held to consider and explore ideas
to commemorate the Queen’s Platinum Jubilee in June. It had already been agreed
to provide all Parishes who applied with £500 towards Platinum Jubilee celebrations
and to have a beacon lighting at Clitheroe Castle. He also noted that the scheduled

Page 78

Freedom Parade by the Duke of Lancaster’s Regiment would be a fitting start to the
Jubilee celebrations in the Ribble Valley.
Finally, the Leader thanked all the voluntary organisations and clubs who continue to
provide opportunities and support for people across the borough. He was particularly
pleased to highlight the achievements of Dave Riding who had recently won Britain’s
first ever skiing world cup gold medal. Dave had started his skiing career at Pendle
Ski Club, which the Council had previously supported with grant funding.
620

LEADER'S QUESTION TIME
The Leader of the Opposition, Councillor S Fletcher, noted that malfeasance was a
very serious matter because democracy was challenged when there was no longer
trust between the people and their Government. He asked if the Leader would agree
that as elected officials it was important that they maintain the highest possible
standards of behaviour in office.
The Leader thanked Councillor Fletcher for his question and confirmed that it was
indeed important as elected representatives to strive to maintain the highest possible
standards of behaviour at all times.
Next Councillor Fletcher made comment regarding the market. He noted that the
pandemic had highlighted the importance of the market to the community and asked if
the Leader could outline the next stages in the ongoing development of Clitheroe
Market.
The Leader agreed that the market was thriving, and that the intention was to use
funding remaining in the Capital Programme of £78,000 to further improve the
offering. He confirmed that he had asked officers to provide an update report to the
next Health and Housing Committee on the changes that were being considered.
Finally, Councillor Fletcher noted that currently 99 Local Authorities and 291 MPs had
supported the Local Electricity Bill. The Bill would adjust energy market rules and
enable local renewable energy businesses to increase supply that would then help
mitigate fossil fuel pollution and reduce fuel bills whilst giving a boost to local
economies.
Councillor Fletcher asked if the Leader would consider introducing a Council motion
in support of the Bill.
The Leader noted that the Local Electricity Bill sought to create a mechanism
whereby locally generated energy could be sold to local people and to make it
financially viable to do so. He acknowledged that this was a commendable aim but
was also mindful that the energy market was going through a period of extreme
volatility at present and so it would be prudent to wait until things had stabilised
before any potential changes were made. He noted that the recent storm Arwen had
demonstrated how dependent the country was on a stable electricity supply and the
national infrastructure.

621

OUR NEW DEAL FOR GREATER LANCASHIRE
The Leader provided Council with an update on work undertaken towards the
development of strengthened joint working, a long-term strategic plan and a County
Deal for the Lancashire area and sought agreement to progress this work.
The Leader provided a comprehensive report on the initial scoping for a “New Deal
for a Greater Lancashire” and urged Members to support the initial draft for further

Page 79

discussion and development of a possible County deal for the Lancashire area. The
matter was then debated.
RESOLVED THAT COUNCIL:
1. support the outline “Our New Deal for a Greater Lancashire” as outlined at
Appendix 1 of the report as an initial draft bases for further discussion and
development of a possible county deal for the Lancashire area;
2. agree the principles of governance as set out in Appendix 2 of the report;
3. agree that the Leader continue to work with Lancashire Leaders, in line with
the principles agreed above and note that any formal proposals would require
approval by Full Council at the appropriate time
622

COMMITTEE MINUTES
1. Community Services committee – 19 October 2021
2. Planning and Development committee – 21 October 2021
3. Personnel committee – 27 October 2021
4. Health and Housing committee – 28 October 2021
5. Licensing committee – 2 November 2021
6. Economic Development committee – 4 November 2021
7. Policy & Finance committee – 9 November 2021
8. Parish Councils Liaison committee – 11 November 2021
9. Accounts & Audit committee – 17 November 2021
10. Emergency committee – 29 November 2021
11. Planning and Development committee – 2 December 2021
12. Emergency committee – 10 December 2021
RESOLVED:
That the minutes of the above committees be received with the exception of Minute
number 428.
Minute 428 – Gambling Act 2005 – Review of Statements of Principles
RESOLVED:
That the Council adopt the Statement of Principles under the Gambling Act 2005 for
2022 - 2025

623

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
There were no items under this heading.

Page 80

The meeting closed at 7.30 pm
If you have any queries on these minutes please contact the committee clerk,
Michelle Smith michelle.smith@ribblevalley.gov.uk.

Page 81

This page is intentionally left blank

Minutes of Parish Councils Liaison
Meeting Date:
Present:

Thursday, 27 January 2022, starting at 6.30 pm
Councillor Martin Highton (Whalley)

Councillors:
D Berryman
S Bibby
D Birtwhistle
A Brown
B Buller
J Hill

B Holden
S Hore
K Horkin
D Peat
G Scott
R Walsh

Parish Representatives:
K Barker
L Crook
C Davies
R Porter
K Kirby
M Gee
H Gee
J Hymas
N Marsden
R Thornber
K Berzins
C Pollard
M Howells
R Chew
J Brown
T Gaffney
S Houghton
A Schofield

Balderstone
Barrow
Bowland with Leagram
Chatburn
Gisburn
Hothersall
Longridge Town Council
Mellor
Mellor
Newton
Ramsgreave
Read
Salesbury
West Bradford
Whalley
Wilpshire
Wiswell
Wiswell

In attendance: Chief Executive and Head of Regeneration and Housing
624

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Borough councillor:
J Alcock
And the following Parish councillors:
T Austin
R Carr
B Green
S Haworth
K Thompson
J Turner
S Rosthorn
R Hirst
J Rattigan

Billington & Langho
Bowland Forest (Higher)
Chipping
Clayton-le-Dale
Clayton-le-Dale
Dinckley
Paythorne
Simonstone
Waddington

Page 83

625

TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
The minutes of the meeting held on 11 November 2021 were approved as a correct
record and signed by the Chairman.
With reference to minute 474 the Chief Executive reminded parishes to claim the
grant the Council was providing to parishes to celebrate and/or commemorate the
Queen’s Platinum Jubileee.

626

DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY, OTHER REGISTRABLE AND
NON-REGISTRABLE INTERESTS
There were no declarations of disclosable pecuniary, other registrable or nonregistrable interests.

627

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
There was no public participation.

628

MATTERS BROUGHT FORWARD BY PARISH COUNCILS FOR THIS AGENDA
None.

629

HAWESWATER AQUEDUCT RESILIENCE PROGRAMME (HARP) - UPDATE
The Head of Regeneration and Regeneration provided a verbal update on the
Haweswater Aqueduct Resilience Programme (HARP), although there was little more
to report than that given at the last meeting.
He informed members that updates would be posted on the Council’s website.
Members requested a timeframe so that the public is aware when works will start to
the pipeline.

630

LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN - UPDATE
The Head of Regeneration and Housing gave members a presentation on the position
with the Local Development plan review.
He outlined the key stages, emerging issues, and The White Paper. He referred to
the existing plans and the need to produce a single new local plan that was 





Updated
Relevant to new challenges
NPPF Compliant
Rolling forward HEDPD elements
Updated Development Management policy suite

Key issues and the timetable for them included 

Regulation 18 - Evidence production, issues and options

- Feb 2022



Regulation 19 - Publication stage – preferred plan

- July 2022



Regulation 22 - Submission stage

- Dec 2022



Regulation 22 - Examination in Public

- May 2023



Inspector’s report

- Sept 2023



Adoption

- Dec 2023

Page 84

Emerging issues included -












Housing land and housing requirements
Economic growth
Infrastructure
Transport
Patterns of development
Space for new retail
Conservation
Climate change
Design imperatives
Sustainable growth

He informed members that the Reg 18 consultation was the opportunity for their
views to be put forward that would generate discussion. This would be followed by a
series of consultations, some of which would be done digitally. He urged parishes to
start thinking about what they would want /not want; what they would be comfortable
with and if they would like to see some growth in their villages.
Parishes indicated that they would appreciate up-to-date census information giving
details of demographic changes as well as some pointers of core headings to be
considered. The Head of Regeneration and Housing agreed to circulate this to
parishes along with signposting to the various documents on the website.
Members asked what sort of climate change influences, and space standards could
be incorporated in the plan to achieve preferred development. They also asked about
cooperation between local authorities where development takes place close to
boundaries and therefore has an impact on Ribble Valley infrastructure.
The Head of Regeneration and Housing explained the ‘duty to cooperate’ being part
of the plan making process. He also explained how some things were difficult to
include in the plan if there was no legislation to enforce policies and if they made
viability an issue for developers.
631

OTHER MATTERS

632

INFORMATION COMMISSIONER'S OFFICE
The Chair asked how many parishes were registered with ICO. He reminded them
that they should be as it was a legal requirement.
The ICO is the UK's independent authority set up to uphold information rights in the
public interest, promoting openness by public bodies and data privacy for individuals.
The ICO is responsible for promoting good practice in handling personal data and
giving advice and guidance on data protection.

633

INFORMATION FOR PARISHES
Wiswell Parish Council had asked that parishes be kept informed of new/updated
legislation. The Chief Executive informed members that this would be an enormous
task and suggested that all parishes should be members of NALC where this
information would be readily available. However, he reiterated the offer made at the
last meeting that the Council would be happy to host forums where ideas could be
shared, and solutions found on topics of concern or interest to the parishes.

Page 85

634

DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING
The Chairman informed the committee that the next meeting would be on 31 March
2022 at 6.30pm.
The meeting closed at 7.55 pm
If you have any queries on these minutes please contact the committee clerk, Olwen
Heap olwen.heap@ribblevalley.gov.uk.

Page 86

Minutes of Licensing
Meeting Date:
Present:

Tuesday, 1 February 2022, starting at 6.30 pm
Councillor R Bennett

Councillors:
I Brown
S Brunskill
S Farmer
R Newmark

D O'Rourke
S O'Rourke
J Rogerson
G Scott

In attendance: Head of Legal and Democratic Services and Solicitor
Also in attendance: Councillors B Berryman and G Mirfin
635

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for the meeting were received from Councillors J Alcock, G Hibbert, S
Hore, A Humphreys, S Rainford and R Walsh.

636

TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
The minutes of the meeting held on 2 November 2021 were approved as a correct
record and signed by the Chairman.

637

DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY, OTHER REGISTRABLE AND
NON-REGISTRABLE INTERESTS
There were no declarations of pecuniary or non-pecuniary interests.

638

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
The Chairman welcomed 2 members of the Whalley residents action group, and M
Peplow, Green Party representative to speak on agenda item 5 – Renewal of Whalley
Cumulative Impact Assessment – Approval of Draft for Consultation – who all urged
committee to approve the renewal of the Whalley cumulative impact assessment for
consultation.

639

RENEWAL OF WHALLEY CUMULATIVE IMPACT ASSESSMENT - APPROVAL OF
DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION
The Chief Executive submitted a report seeking committee’s approval of the draft
Cumulative Impact Assessment (CIA) for Whalley prior to formal consultation. If
approved, it would form part of the Council’s Licensing Policy.
The Solicitor reminded members that a CIA expires after 3 years and as such the
current one expires in April 2022. Following the decision of committee to progress
renewal of the CIA for Whalley, information was sought to form the evidence base
necessary to justify the assessment.
The draft CIA was attached to the report for members to consider. The Solicitor
highlighted evidence relating to crime and disorder incidents, the responses from
local residents, together with the evidence from the records of Environmental Health
and Enforcement Officers, particularly relating to the prevention of public nuisance.

Page 87

He reminded members that the introduction of a CIA would not be retrospective,
would not automatically have effect in that responsible authorities or other interested
parties would still have to make representations in relation to each application, but
that it would create a rebuttable presumption of refusal of applications for new
premises licences and club certificates and variation of such licences and certificates
but would still require each application to be considered on its merits.
The Solicitor outlined the scope of the proposed CIA and the process for including it
in the Council’s Licensing Policy.
Councillor G Mirfin was given permission to speak on this item and referred to the
Council being a responsible authority and the procedural separation required between
those officers representing an authority in its capacity as responsible authority and
those who would advise the Committee or Sub-Committee on applications to review
licences.
Members discussed the situations specific to Whalley and the need to help those
residents who were experiencing antisocial behaviour, particularly with the late
nighttime economy. They felt that more guidance and help from the Police was
required and that action should be taken against any licensees who were not
complying with regulations.
The Head of Legal and Democratic Services gave members an update on the work of
the enforcement officers and reminded them that reviews of licences were a statutory
process.
Members asked for a report on what actions could be taken alongside having the CIA.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
1. Approve the draft Cumulative Impact Assessment contained in the report to
form the basis of consultation as required by the Act.
2. Request a report from officers on the actions/measures that could be taken
now to alleviate the problems being experienced by residents of Whalley.
640

PLATES ON HACKNEY CARRIAGES AND PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLES
The Chief Executive submitted a report informing committee of a change to the
information displayed on the plates fixed to Hackney Carriage and Private Hire
vehicles.
The Town and Police Clauses Act 1847 and Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1976 stipulate a statutory requirement to stipulate the number of
persons who can be carried in the vehicle. The rest of the information contained on
the plate is at the discretion of the Council.
Currently, the plates on vehicles licensed by the Council include details of the type of
licence, the licence number, the vehicle registration number, vehicle type, the expiry
date and the number of passengers that the vehicle is licensed to carry.
He informed committee that if the expiry date was not included then the plate could
last for many years. It was therefore intended that the plates be altered by removal of
the information on the renewal date, and that officers continue to monitor the
impending expiry date of licences, and should the renewal application not be received
than steps would be taken to recover and remove the plate.

Page 88

641

UPDATE ON THE TAXIS AND PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLES (SAFEGUARDING AND
ROAD SAFETY) BILL
The Chief Executive submitted a report informing committee of the progress of a
Private Member’s Bill seeking to improve the safety of taxi passengers.
The Private Member’s Bill introduced on 16 June 2021 by Perter Gibson MP, would
mandate authorities to record taxi licence refusals, revocations and suspensions on a
national database, and authorities would be required to consult that database before
determining an application for a driver’s licence. This would address the problem of a
driver obtaining a licence from another authority having had one revoked in one
authority for wrongdoing. It would also allow local authority enforcement teams to
report instances of wrongdoing by drivers to the authority by which the offender is
licensed.
Following the debate in the Commons on 21 January 2022 the Bill had progressed to
the House of Lords where it awaited its second reading.

642

COMPLIANCE CHECKS ON OFF-LICENCES
The Chief Executive submitted a report informing committee of the outcome of visits
to off-licences in the Ribble Valley to monitor their compliance with legislation.
Following the appointment of 2 full time planning and licensing enforcement officers, it
had been possible to carry out further compliance checks at licensed premises. This
was to establish their levels of compliance and to remind them of the requirements of
their licences, including staff training, Check 25 and Challenge posters, and to ensure
that the premises licence was current, correct and on display.
Visits had been carried out to 25 premises, and although the majority checked were
of a satisfactory standard, three premises were requested to display their licence, and
some others needed to make minor changes to their licence. One had engaged a
licensing company to audit and manage staff training and three had been advised of
apparent gaps in their training and recording systems. These premises would be
revisited at a later date.
The visits were generally welcomed by the premises licence holders.

643

MINUTES OF LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 7 DECEMBER 2021
Committee received the minutes of the Licensing sub-committee held on 7 December
2021.

644

REPORTS FROM REPRESENTATIVES ON OUTSIDE BODIES
There were no reports from representatives on outside bodies.

645

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
There were no items under this heading.

The meeting closed at 7.15 pm
If you have any queries on these minutes please contact the committee clerk, Olwen
Heap olwen.heap@ribblevalley.gov.uk.

Page 89

This page is intentionally left blank

Minutes of Accounts and Audit
Meeting Date:
Present:

Wednesday, 2 February 2022, starting at 6.30 pm
Councillor D Berryman (Chair)

Councillors:
S Bibby
L Edge
K Fletcher
S Fletcher

R Newmark
D Peat
J Rogerson
R Sherras

In attendance: Chief Executive, Head of Financial Services, Head of Legal and
Democratic Services and Sophia Iqbal (Grant Thornton)
646

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received for the meeting from Councillors J Hill and S
Hirst.

647

TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
The minutes of the meeting held on 17 November 2021 were approved as a correct
record and signed by the Chairman.

648

DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY, OTHER REGISTRABLE AND
NON-REGISTRABLE INTERESTS
There were no declarations of pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests.

649

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
There was no public participation.

650

OPTING INTO THE
APPOINTMENTS

NATIONAL

SCHEME

FOR

EXTERNAL

AUDITORS

The Director of Resources submitted a report setting out proposals for appointing the
external auditor to the Council for the five-year period from 2023/24 to 2027/28.
The Head of Financial Services reminded members that the Council had opted into
the ‘appointing person’ national auditor appointment arrangements established by
Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) for the period covering the accounts for
2018/19 to 2022/23. Under this arrangement Grant Thornton were appointed as our
external auditors.
The procurement was now taking place for the next appointing period and members
had been provided with a detailed report outlining the details of the appointment. He
informed members that there were currently only nine accredited audit firms able to
carry out local authority external audits. He also highlighted reasons why using PSAA
would produce better outcomes and be less burdensome for the Council.
Should the Council wish to take advantage of the national auditor appointment
arrangements, as required by the local audit regulations, the decision would be made
by Full Council. This was required by 11 March 2022.

Page 91

*** RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
Recommend to Council that the Council accepts Public Sector Audit Appointments’
invitation to opt into the sector-led option for the appointment of external auditors to
principal local government and police bodies for five financial years from 1 April 2023.
651

CLOSURE OF ACCOUNTS TIMETABLE 2021/22
The Director of Resources submitted a report informing committee of the statutory
deadline for the closure of our accounts. It also informed committee of the benefits of
closing down the accounts in a timely manner, in particular the good governance
aspects, and of the timetable that would be adhered to in order to achieve the
required deadlines.
The Accounts and Audit (amendment) Regulations 2021 had amended the
publication deadlines for draft and final accounts from 1 June and 31 July to 1 August
and 30 September.
The same regulations set out detailed requirements in relation to duties and rights
that have important implications for local authorities in terms of planning to ensure
critical tasks are met and the approval of the accounts carried out by set deadlines.
They also stipulate the various responsibilities for the closure of accounts.
The closedown timetable showed that the presentation of the audited statement of
accounts would be received by this committee at its meeting on 23 November 2022
for approval. However, there was potential for this date to be brought forward to 28
September 2022 should audit planning and progress allow.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
Endorse the suggested approach for the closure of the 2021/22 accounts.

652

REVIEW OF REPRESENTATION ON OUTSIDE BODIES
The Chief Executive submitted a report informing committee of the current position
regarding representation on outside bodies and seeking approval of a review of the
current arrangements.
The Head of Legal and Democratic Services reminded members that the Council
appoints or nominates many of its members as representatives on several outside
bodies each year at the Annual Council meeting. Many of these appointments are
historic or a requirement of a lease between the Council and a body, others are at the
invitation of the outside body.
She informed members that increasingly representatives were required to become
Directors or Trustees which means they are not just the Council’s representative but
owe the outside body a duty by virtue of the appointment. Some bodies were also
now asking for applications and references.
It was therefore considered prudent for the Council to review the lists of outside
bodies, and the requirements of those bodies, to decide whether to continue to make
nominations for representation.
It was also proposed that training should be provided to all members on the
implications for them being appointed to an outside body and how they should
manage any such risks or conflicts.

Page 92

RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
1. Approve the establishment of a working group consisting of Councillors D
Berryman, R Sherras, S Bibby, S Fletcher and J Rogerson (D Peat reserve) to
review the Council’s representation on outside bodies, and
2. Note that the Head of Legal and Democratic Services will make provision for
training to all members on their role on outside bodies.
653

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2021/22
The Director of Resources submitted a report for information on the progress of the
internal audit work to the 21 January 2022.
The Report noted that:

654



Audit coverage had been lower than that originally planned and as a result
additional external resources had been engaged and would continue whilst
needed.



Staff vacancies had had an impact on coverage, as a consequence the
Services of the Mersey Internal Audit Agency (MIAA) would continue to be
used to help ensure adequate audit coverage.



It was anticipated that all originally planned audits would not be able to be
covered, but that there would be adequate coverage together with the work of
MIAA to be able to provide members with an informed Audit Opinion at the
end of the year.



The post of Internal Audit Manager was currently being advertised again with
interviews planned for 11 February 2022.

AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT AND SECTOR UPDATE
Grant Thornton submitted a report for members information on the progress in
delivering the 2020/21 audit. Work had been completed on the Council’s financial
statements and were reported to committee in the Audit Findings report in November
2021. An unqualified opinion had since been issued on 29 November 2021.
The value for money work was continuing and would be reported as part of the
Annual report at the end of February 2022. Certification of claims and returns was
also ongoing.
The report also included a summary of emerging national issues and developments,
as well as a number of challenge questions for the committee to consider.

655

REPORTS FROM REPRESENTATIVES ON OUTSIDE BODIES
There were no reports from representatives on outside bodies.

656

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
There were no items under this heading.
The meeting closed at 7.05 pm
If you have any queries on these minutes please contact the committee clerk, Olwen
Heap olwen.heap@ribblevalley.gov.uk.

Page 93

This page is intentionally left blank

Minutes of Planning and Development
Meeting Date:
Present:

Thursday, 10 February 2022, starting at 6.30 pm
Councillor A Brown (Chair)

Councillors:
I Brown
S Brunskill
S Carefoot
J Clark
L Edge
B Holden

K Horkin
A Humphreys
S O'Rourke
J Rogerson
R Sherras

In attendance: Director of Economic Development and Planning, Head of Planning
Services and Solicitor
Also in attendance: Councillors S Fletcher and G Scott
657

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence for the meeting were received from Councillors B Buller, M
French and M Robinson.

658

TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
The minutes of the meeting held on 6 January 2022 were approved as a correct
record and signed by the Chairman.

659

DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY, OTHER REGISTRABLE AND
NON-REGISTRABLE INTERESTS
Councillor J Rogerson declared an interest in Planning Application 3/2021/0356.
Councillor K Horkin declared he owned businesses in Clitheroe.

660

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
There was no public participation.

661

PLANNING APPLICATIONS UNDER THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT
1990

662

PLANNING APPLICATION 3/2021/1042 - LAND REAR OF 16 WHITEACRE LANE,
BARROW
The Head of Planning Services informed committee that plans were still awaited.
RESOLVED that the application be approved and deferred and delegated to the
Director of Economic Development and Planning for appropriate conditions and an
acceptable design.
Councillor J Rogerson declared an interest in the next item of business and left the
meeting.

Page 95

663

PLANNING APPLICATION 3/2021/0356 - WHARF FARM, GREEN LANE, CHIPPING
RESOLVED that the application be approved subject to the following conditions:
1.

The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years
beginning with the date of this permission.
REASON: Required to be imposed pursuant to section 91 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2.

Unless explicitly required by condition within this consent, the development
hereby permitted shall be carried out in complete accordance with the
proposals as detailed on drawings:
Location Plan OS Map Nov 2021
Proposed Building Layout Plan March 2021
Proposed Section Plan Sept 2021
Proposed Revised Elevation Plan March 2021 received on 18/01/22
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and to clarify which plans are relevant
to the consent.

Materials
3.

This permission shall relate to the materials specified on elevation plan
received on 18/01/22 and photograph sent on the 19/01/22 in relation to the
natural stone. The development thereafter shall be constructed in accordance
with the approved materials.
REASON: To ensure that the appearance of the development is appropriate to
the character and setting of the area.

Drainage
4

The development permitted by this planning permission shall be carried out in
accordance with the principles set out within the flood risk assessment
drainage strategy (October 2021 / 041121 - Revision A / REFORD). The
measures shall be fully implemented prior to the commencement of the use of
the development and in accordance with the timing arrangements embodied
within the scheme, or within any other period as may subsequently be agreed,
in writing, by the local planning authority in consultation with the lead local
flood authority.
REASON: To ensure satisfactory sustainable drainage facilities are provided
to serve the site in accordance with the Paragraphs 166 and 168 of the
National Planning Policy Framework, Planning Practice Guidance and Defra
Technical Standards for Sustainable Drainage Systems.

5.

No development shall commence until details of how surface water and
pollution prevention will be managed during each demolition and construction
phase have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority. Those details shall include for each phase, as a minimum: a)
Measures taken to ensure surface water flows are retained on-site during
demolition and construction phase(s) and, if surface water flows are to be
discharged they are done so at a restricted rate to be agreed with the
Lancashire County Council LLFA. b) Measures taken to prevent siltation and

Page 96

pollutants from the site into any receiving groundwater and/or surface waters,
including watercourses, with reference to published guidance. The
development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details.
REASON: To ensure the development is served by satisfactory arrangements
for the disposal of surface water during each demolition and construction
phase(s) so it does not pose an undue flood risk on site or elsewhere and to
ensure that any pollution arising from the development as a result of the
demolition and construction works does not adversely impact on existing or
proposed ecological or geomorphic condition of water bodies.
6.

No building on any phase (or within an agreed implementation schedule) of
the development hereby permitted shall be occupied until a Verification Report
and Operation and Maintenance Plan for the lifetime of the development,
pertaining to the surface water drainage system and prepared by a suitably
competent person, has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning
Authority. The Verification Report must demonstrate that the sustainable
drainage system has been constructed as per the agreed scheme (or detail
any minor variations), and contain information and evidence (including
photographs) of details and locations (including national grid reference) of
inlets, outlets and control structures; landscape plans; full as built drawings;
information pertinent to the installation of those items identified on the critical
drainage assets drawing; and, the submission of an final 'operation and
maintenance manual' for the sustainable drainage scheme as constructed.
Details of appropriate operational, maintenance and access requirements for
each sustainable drainage component are to be provided, with reference to
published guidance, through an appropriate Operation and Maintenance Plan
for the lifetime of the development as constructed. This shall include
arrangements for adoption by an appropriate public body or statutory
undertaker, and/or management and maintenance by a Management
Company and any means of access for maintenance and easements, where
applicable. Thereafter the drainage system shall be retained, managed and
maintained in accordance with the approved details.
REASON: To ensure that flood risks from development to the future users of
the land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those risks to
controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the
development as constructed is compliant with and subsequently maintained
pursuant to the requirements of Paragraph 168 of the National Planning Policy
Framework.

Councillor J Rogerson returned to the meeting.
664

PLANNING APPLICATION 3/2021/1153 - LAND ADJ. 9 OLD ROAD, CHATBURN
RESOLVED that the application be deferred and delegated to the Director of
Economic Development and Planning in consultation with Chair and Vice Chair of
Planning committee subject to an assessment of additional information in relation to
biodiversity report and ecological assessment.
Councillor G Scott was given permission to speak on this item.
(Mr D Parkinson spoke against the above application)

665

PLANNING APPLICATION 3/2021/1228 - 8 MAIN STREET, BOLTON-BY-BOWLAND
RESOLVED that the application be approved subject to the following conditions:

Page 97

1.

The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years
beginning with the date of this permission.
REASON: Required to be imposed pursuant to section 91 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2.

Unless explicitly required by condition within this consent, the development
hereby permitted shall be carried out in complete accordance with the
proposals as detailed on drawings and documents:
Proposed Elevation/ Floor plans received on 6/12/21.
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and to clarify which plans are relevant
to the consent.

666

PLANNING APPLICATION 3/2021/1229 - 8 MAIN STREET, BOLTON-BY-BOWLAND
RESOLVED that Listed Building Consent be approved subject to the following
conditions:
1.

The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years
beginning with the date of this permission.
REASON: Required to be imposed pursuant to section 91 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2.

Unless explicitly required by condition within this consent, the development
hereby permitted shall be carried out in complete accordance with the
proposals as detailed on drawings and documents:
Proposed Site plan submitted with the application
Proposed Elevation/ Floor plans received on 6/12/21.
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and to clarify which plans are relevant
to the consent.

667

PLANNING APPLICATION 3/2021/1240 - EASTWOOD HOUSE, WISWELL
The Head of Planning Services reported that amended plans had been received.
RESOLVED that the application be approved subject to the following conditions:
Time
1.

The development hereby permitted shall be commenced before the expiration
of three years from the date of this permission.
REASON: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchasing Act 2004.

Page 98

Plans
2.

Unless explicitly required by this consent, the development hereby permitted
shall be carried out in complete accordance with the proposals as detailed on
drawings plan references
Location Plan Received on 2/02/22
Proposed Floor Plan Drawing 6005a received on 2/02/22
Proposed Elevation Plan Drawing 6005a received on 2/02/22
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and to clarify which plans are relevant
to the consent.

Materials
3.

Prior to the commencement of the construction of the development hereby
approved full details of the external materials and surfacing materials shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Panning Authority. The
development thereafter shall be constructed in accordance with the approved
materials.
REASON: To ensure that the appearance of the development is appropriate
to the character and setting of the area.

668

DISPLAY OF PLANS AT PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE
The Director of Economic Development and Planning submitted a report outlining the
options in considering the request to displaying plans during committee meetings.
She reminded members that paper copies of plans used to be displayed in the council
chamber, but this process had stopped at least 5 years ago. Members considered the
options available, namely returning to displaying paper copies; having a PowerPoint
presentation displaying the plans and photographs of application sites; or awaiting the
rollout of the new councillor IT equipment. She outlined the pros and cons for each of
these options.
She also informed committee that at a national level the 2020 Planning White Paper
included a clear direction of travel to digitise the planning process with online mapbased plans enabling the community to be more engaged within the planning system.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE
Agree that no changes be made to the current system to enable an assessment of
member access to planning documents via their new Surface Pro IT equipment. This
would be reviewed in 6 months after the new tablets had been distributed and used
by members in committee meetings.

669

CHIPPING PLAYGROUND - SECTION 106 MONIES
The Director of Economic Development and Planning submitted a report seeking
authority to release Section 106 contributions to Chipping Parish Council to facilitate
improvement works at the playground in Chipping.
The Section 106 monies were secured when planning permission was granted to
redevelop Kirk Mill. This agreement was varied in 2017 and included a contribution of
£23,598.72 to provide an off-site play area within the vicinity of the development. The
contribution split into three trigger points and the first two had already been received.

Page 99

The Parish Council were planning to refurbish the children’s playground commencing
with the replacement of the largest unit. Quotations for the works had been received
and the equipment had already been replaced.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
Authorise payment of £10,619.42 to Chipping Parish Council for the completion of the
play area improvements as set out, within 28 working days of the date of this
committee.
670

STATUTORY REVIEW JUDGMENT
The Director of Economic Development and Planning submitted a report for
information updating members on the High Court challenge in respect of a Planning
Inspectorate decision for land at the junction of Chatburn Road and Pimlico Link
Road, Clitheroe.
The challenge had been made by this Council following a Planning Inspector allowing
the non-determination appeal and awarding partial costs against the Council of an
application for 39 dwellings where the committee had supported the officers reason
for refusal in respect of the proposals that had subsequently been presented to the
Planning Inspectorate. The challenge was made due to the Inspector’s interpretation
of the Core Strategy Policies, in particular, Policy DMG2.
The case was considered in the High Court on 16 September 2021 where the judge
found for the Council in the matter and concluded that the Inspector’s decision should
be quashed. However, before the Secretary of State could re-make the quashed
decision on a proper basis, the appellant had applied to the Court of Appeal for
permission to appeal against the Order of His Honour Judge Bird. This was refused
and the matter would now be reverted to the Secretary of State.
The Council’s legal costs had also been received following the courts order that the
Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local Government and Oakmere
Homes pay them.
The Director of Economic Development and Planning informed committee that the
outcome of the challenge clearly confirmed that the Council’s applications of Policy
DMG2 was correct and development outside the settlement boundaries does not
engage part 1 of the policy.

671

LOCAL PLAN EVIDENCE BASE - ECONOMIC AND EMPLOYMENT LAND REVIEW
The Director of Economic Development and Planning submitted a report for
information in relation to the Economic and Employment Land Needs Study that
forms part of the Local Plan Evidence Base.
The Council had commissioned Lichfields to undertake the study which would
establish land requirements, consider policy imperatives in relation to employment
land use classes together with other key economic matters.
The study was also important to enable the Council to promote sufficient employment
opportunities to help sustain and support established new housing development and
inform future links between employment growth and housing.
The consultants had also undertaken a business survey as part of the study.

Page 100

A key finding of the study is that the Council is in a position where there is a relatively
significant shortfall of suitable and readily available sites to meet economic growth
aspirations and future demands, and should therefore, give consideration to
identifying and allocating additional sites that are considered suitable and deliverable.
Members requested that they be kept informed of developments at Samlesbury.
672

APPEALS
3/2021/0141 – change of use of an agricultural building to 5 dwelling under Class Q
(a) and (B) at barn at Alston Old Hall Farm, Longridge, PR3 3BN – appeal dismissed
3/2021/0141 – Application for costs – refused
3/2021/0697 – erection of new stable block and change of use of land for all-weather
menage for private use at Kitchens, Cross Lane, Bashall Eaves, BB7 3NA – appeal
dismissed

673

REPORTS FROM REPRESENTATIVES ON OUTSIDE BODIES
There were no reports from representatives on outside bodies.

674

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
There were no items under this heading.

The meeting closed at 7.28 pm
If you have any queries on these minutes please contact the committee clerk, Olwen
Heap 01200 414408 olwen.heap@ribblevalley.gov.uk.

Page 101

This page is intentionally left blank

Minutes of Policy and Finance
Meeting Date:
Present:

Tuesday, 22 February 2022, starting at 6.30 pm
Councillor S Atkinson (Chair)

Councillors:
D Berryman
S Bibby
A Brown
S Fletcher
M French
G Hibbert

J Hill
M Hindle
S Hirst
S Hore
K Horkin (arr. 6.40pm)
D Peat

In attendance: Chief Executive, Director of Resources, Director of Community
Services, Director of Economic Development and Planning and Head of Financial
Services
Also in attendance: Councillors L Edge, G Mirfin and R Newmark
675

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence from the meeting were received from Councillors J Clark and
R Thompson.

676

TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING AND THE
EMERGENCY COMMITTEE ON 25 JANUARY 2022
The minutes of the meeting held on 18 January 2022 and Emergency committee on
25 January 2022 were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

677

DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY, OTHER REGISTRABLE AND
NON-REGISTRABLE INTERESTS
There were no declarations of disclosable pecuniary, other registrable or nonregistrable interests.

678

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
There was no public participation.

679

FINAL LOCAL GOVERNMENT FINANCE SETTLEMENT 2022/23
The Director of Resources submitted a report for committee’s information providing
details of the Final Local Government Finance Settlement for 2022/23. The Local
Government Finance Settlement is the annual determination of funding to Local
Government and is approved by the House of Commons and was issued on 16
December 2021.
The Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local Government, Michael
Gove, issued a written ministerial statement to the House of Commons which set out
the Local Government Finance Settlement for 2022/23. The consultation period
ended on 13 January 2022 and the final settlement was announced on 7 February
2022.

Page 103

The final settlement figures were broadly in line with the provisional figures and was
for one year only which made long term financial planning very difficult. For Ribble
Valley the council core spending power in cash terms equated to 0.6% ie £39,000,
and assumes that the Council would increase their share of the council tax by the
maximum amount.
A new one off 2022/23 Services Grant of £93,368 to provide funding for all tiers of
local government in recognition of our services and includes the costs of the increase
in NI contribution had been allocated. This would not form part of any transitional
protection.
With regard to the rural services delivery grant the Government had announced that
this would be continued with the same amount of £113,250 being awarded as last
year.
The Director of Resources informed committee that the one-off ‘lower tier services’
grant would continue for 2022/23. Ribble Valley would receive £61,960.
She also reported that the Government had allowed a new round of New Homes
Bonus allocations in respect of 2022/23 which would not attract any future legacy
payments. They had also allowed the one remaining legacy payment of £464k.This
would mean we will receive £741k for 2022/23 along with the legacy payment of
£464k = £1.2m.
Ribble Valley BC remained a member of the Lancashire Business Rate pool which
would continue in 2022/23, where members benefit from retaining levies on growth
above their baseline, and as Lead Authority also received £20k to act as a channel for
payments.
Regarding council tax, the Director of Resources informed committee that the
Government had decided that we would be allowed to increase our council tax by £5
without having to hold a referendum. Should this be agreed, it would generate extra
council tax income of £123k.
680

OVERALL REVISED CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2021/22
The Director of Resources submitted a report informing committee of the overall
revised capital programme for 2021/22.
The original programme had been approved by Council in March 2021 and regular
reports had been presented to all committees on progress with the schemes. There
had been a number of further approvals and adjustments made during the year
resulting in the total approved Capital Programme for 2021/22 of £3,453,420 over 31
schemes. The revised estimate for each of these schemes had been determined
following discussion with budget holders regarding their progress and estimated full
year expenditure.
The revised Capital Programme now stood at £1,761,370 which was a reduction of
£1,692,050 from the previously approved capital programme and a reduction of 7
schemes. The main reasons for the budget changes were outlined in the report.
The report went on to outline how the capital programme had been financed with a
summary of the movement on the capital earmarked reserve.
Earmarked reserves are used to fund £540,420 of the 2021/22 proposed revised
capital programme, with the balance of the funding coming from usable capital

Page 104

receipts of £74,910, grants and contributions of £1,131,040 and borrowing of
£15,000.
At the end of December 2021 £784,801 had been spent or committed on capital
programme schemes. This equated to 44.6% of the full year proposed revised capital
programme budget. Of the 23 schemes 3 had been completed; 18 were in progress
and 2 were on-going demand-led Housing capital grant schemes. Progress on these
schemes with variances were outlined in the report.
Cllr R Newmark was given permission to speak on this item.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
Approve the overall revised capital programme for 2021/22.
Councillor K Horkin joined the meeting.
681

THREE YEAR CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2022/23 – 2024/25
The Director of Resources submitted a report providing members with details of the
previously approved capital programme schemes for 2022/23 to 2024/25, and the
movement of some schemes from 2021/22 to 2022/23 following the revised capital
programme 2021/22 review for recommendation to Council on 8 March 2022.
This year there were no new bids to consider, and the capital programme would go
forward as a three-year capital programme rather than a five-year capital programme.
New bids had been sought and reported to service committees but in the light of the
uncertainty regarding local government funding beyond 2022/23 and the impending
fair funding review, had been set aside until later in the 2022/23 financial year.
Heads of Service had reviewed and updated the existing three-year capital
programme covering 2023/24 to 2024/25.
The previously approved capital programme was summarised along with a number of
adjustments proposed totalling £215,000, so increasing the programme from
£3,526,480 to £3,741,480. Of the £215,000, £138,000 would be funded from
increased Disabled facility grant funding. The balance of £77,000 would be funded
from the Business Rate Growth Earmarked Reserve.
In addition, the external funding of £222,240 towards the Castle Keep Repointing
scheme was unlikely to materialise so it was proposed that the balance of this
scheme be funded from the Business Rates Growth Earmarked Reserve.
A further scheme had been approved by Community Services committee in respect of
the Mardale Playing Pitches in the sum of £80,900 that would be fully funded from
S106 monies.
In revising the 2021/22 capital programme, there had been 12 schemes/part schemes
totalling £1,736,890 proposed to be moved to the 2022/23 financial year as they
would not be completed by 31 March 2022 for various reasons.
Two of these schemes required additional funding due to increased scheme prices
that would result in a further increase of £4,700 that would be funded from the
Business Rates Growth Earmarked Reserve.
The final proposed capital programme and its financing was outlined for committee.

Page 105

Reference was made to the Chester Avenue Car Park scheme and whether this was
needed given the pressures on the Council’s resources for other schemes. The
Chairman reminded members that it had already been agreed previously that the
scheme would not go ahead before full consideration was given by this Committee.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
1. Recommend the Capital Programme for 2022/23 to 2024/25 as set out in the
report to Full Council on 8 March 2022, and
2. Ask for due diligence work to be undertaken on all new capital bids to enable
further consideration over the summer when we know the impact of the
pending key financial reforms.
682

INFLATION AND THE REVENUE BUDGET 2022/23
The Director of Resources submitted a report providing members with information on
the inflationary increases allowed for in the 2022/23 revenue budget, and the potential
impact of further inflationary increases above that allowed for in the budget.
Committee were informed that inflation had been increasing substantially over the last
twelve months reaching 5.4% in January 2022, largely driven by items such as
vehicle fuel and utilities, particularly gas and electricity costs. The Bank of England
were currently forecasting that inflation would reach 7.25% by spring.
Some substantial increases had already been allowed for in the budget in respect of
the council’s own direct costs in these areas, but suppliers were now passing on
substantially more of their own costs in their prices as inflation becomes more
sustained.
To be able to set a prudent and affordable budget it would be recommended that a
contingency for inflationary increase be provided for within the budget for 2022/23 of
at least £140,000 which allowed a further 1% inflationary increase on top of the 2%
allowed on pay and the 3% allowed for on prices.
Councillor G Mirfin was given permission to speak on this item.

683

OVERALL REVENUE BUDGET 2022/23
The Director of Resources submitted a report asking committee to approve the
revised Revenue Budget for 2021/22 and to recommend a revenue budget and
council tax requirement for 2022/23 to Council on 8 March 2022.
The revised budget now forecast that instead of having to take £400k from general
fund balances to balance the budget, £198k would now be added to balances at the
end of the year.
She explained the main reasons for committee expenditure having fallen by £360k.
A significant element of our income was business rate growth and the Director of
Resources outlined the latest estimate of Ribble Valley’s share of business rate
income for the current year.
When setting the original budget it had been agreed to use £795,549 to fund the
revenue budget and £85,200 to fund the capital programme. Based on the latest
position we expect to receive £1.469m, use £85,200 to fund the capital programme,

Page 106

use £795,549 to fund the base revenue budget and use £6,675 of further revenue in
year expenditure approved by the Emergency committee; therefore, the revised
difference of £581,719 would be added to the business rate growth reserve.
She informed committee that there were further in year complications due to the late
announcement in March 2021 of 100% retail discount for the 3 months to 30 June
2021 followed by a 66% discount for the remaining 9 months. The section 31 grant for
the expanded retail discount would be moved into next year by setting aside in an
earmarked reserve totalling £1.641m.
The forecast transfers to and from earmarked reserves compared with the original
estimate were highlighted, in particular the addition of £1.766m to earmarked
reserves largely due to timing differences in receipt of section 31 grants that would
need to be carried forward to offset the deficit to be faced next year.
Looking forward to 2022/31, the Director of Resources briefly highlighted the key
elements of the final grant settlement; rural services delivery grant; lower tier services
grant; 2022/23 services grant; future years government funding and the reforms due
to come on Fair Funding Review, Business Rate Retention reform and New Homes
Bonus scheme.
The report went on to detail the Council Tax Base and the Council Tax Referendum
criteria. The Director of Resources highlighted the fact that the current band D tax of
£155.69 meant that Ribble Valley was in the bottom quartile of all district councils at
28th out of 188 and the lowest across Lancashire districts. The report outlined the
potential amount of income that would be generated by increasing the Council Tax by
£5 (the maximum allowed for next year). This would generate £122,765 in extra
revenue and in addition the increase in the tax base would generate a further £85,007
Reference was made to the New Homes Bonus scheme and the Director of
Resources informed members that we currently rely on £1.105m each year to fund
the revenue budget. The assumption had been made that 2022/23 was the last year
of the scheme and could not, therefore be relied upon to fund the revenue budget
going forward.
With regard to the Business Rate Retention Scheme the NNDR1 return had been
submitted and based on the share of business rate income from the Lancashire
Business Rate Pool it was anticipated that the total business rate income for next
year would be £1,879,798 of which £795k would be used to fund the revenue budget
and a further £296k to fund the cost of the new pay line. It was also planned to use
£512k to fund the capital programme along with £219k agreed elsewhere on the
agenda due to changes on schemes.
She drew members attention to the fact that the estimated balance of the volatility
reserve stands at £1.682m. This was sufficient to provide a safety net protection
which we would have to forgo as a pool member of 92.5% of our business rate
growth. Since reaching this level a Business Rate Growth Reserve had been created
to support both the revenue and capital programme.
For Ribble Valley the core spending power had been increased by just 0.6% and the
report outlined possible transitional arrangements following the outcome of key
financial reforms.
The Director of Resources reported that the Collection Fund was likely to produce an
overall deficit of £3,112,640 this year, that consisted of a surplus for council tax of
£1,260,939 and a deficit for business rates of £4,373,579 mainly due to the awarding
in year of £3.988m of retail discount. The council tax surplus would be shared

Page 107

amongst all the major precepting authorities with our share being £115,329 and the
business rate deficit would be jointly borne with our share being £1,749,431.
Regarding the revenue budget 2022/23 the Director of Resources outlined the
provisional base position as agreed by service committees. Committee expenditure
was set to increase by £699k for reasons outlined and reported to the service
committees.
She highlighted the capital adjustments, movement of other items, substantial
increase in inflation, the pay award and continuing difficulties in recruitment and
retention that may need to be addressed. She informed committee that growth items
totalling recurring bids of £525,210 and non recuring bids of £67,750 had not been
included in the figures at this time.
Given the future uncertainties she gave an indication based on assumptions of the
annual budget shortfall for the years up to 2026/27 and the potential call on reserves.
The Director of Resources reminded advised committee that the Budget Working
Group had considered the Council’s financial and overall budget position for the next
year and had made a number of recommendations in order to achieve an affordable
budget:


That a contingency be added to next year’s revenue budget of £140,000 for
inflation and the budget working group closely monitor the impact of inflation
on the Council’s budget throughout the year.



That a contingency be added to next year’s budget of £50k for potential further
income losses due to the covid pandemic.



They recommend that no growth bids be included at this stage in the next
year’s budget but asked for due diligence work be undertaken on all revenue
bids for further consideration over the summer when the impact of the pending
key financial reforms is known.



That £795k of business rate growth fund be used to support the 2022/23
revenue budget plus £296k to fund the 2022/23 cost of the new pay line.



That £1.105m of New Homes Bonus be used to fund the revenue budget.



That a £5 increase be made to the Band D council tax for 2022/23 to £160.69.



That £250,000 be used from General Fund balances as per the budget
forecast with an additional £162k to fund the budget gap = £412k.

The Director of Resources went on to inform committee of the robustness of the
budget and the adequacy of the Council’s balances and reserves.
She outlined the recommended Revenue Budget for 2022/23 was a net budget of
£5,415,359. This would still leave £2.319m in general fund balances at the end of
March 2023.
The Director of Resources gave committee a summary of the updated 5-year budget
forecast for the revenue budget assuming that the 2022/23 budget was agreed and
highlighted the budget gap over the next 5 years. She pointed out if these proved
correct then £8.363m of our earmarked reserves / general fund balances would be
required for the period 2024/25 to 2026/27.

Page 108

Members discussed various aspects of the proposed budget.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
1. Approve the revised revenue budget for 2021/22,
2. Approve the Budget Working Group’s recommendations and set a budget and
Council Tax requirement for 2022/23 as set out:

BUDGET AND COUNCIL TAX REQUIREMENT
£
RVBC Net Budget
Plus Parish Precepts (Annex 3)

5,415,359
517,347
5,932,706

Less - Settlement Funding Assessment

-1,354,608

Net Requirement Before Adjustments

4,578,098

Council Tax Surplus
Council Tax Requirement (Including Parishes)

-115,329
4,462,769

3. And recommend the budget and council tax requirement to Council on 8
March 2022.
684

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
RESOLVED: That by virtue of the next item of business being exempt information
under Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 the
press and public be now excluded from the meeting.

685

COUNCIL OWNED ASSETS
The Director of Economic Development and Planning submitted a report informing
committee of the current position regarding several Council owned assets and
seeking approval to dispose of them.
These related to the former ticket office at Clitheroe Railway Station and the former
physiotherapy centre at Back King Street, Clitheroe. She highlighted the background
relating to each one and informed committee that the assets had been reviewed on
behalf of the Council and recommendations made. She advised committee that the
matter of the Over 60’s club premises in Longridge would be withdrawn pending
consideration by the Longridge Asset Working Group.
RESOLVED THAT COMMITTEE:
1. Approve and authorise the Director of Economic Development and Planning to
procure services to market the former ticket office for rent,
2. Approve and authorise the Director of Economic Development and Planning to
procure services to market the former Physiotherapy Centre for rent; and

Page 109

3. Delegate authority to the Chief Executive to enter into rental agreements for
both the former ticket office and physiotherapy centre subject to suitable offers
being made.

The meeting closed at 7.45 pm
If you have any queries on these minutes please contact the committee clerk, Olwen
Heap 01200 414408 olwen.heap@ribblevalley.gov.uk.

Page 110

